
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
 

Wednesday, October 28, 2020– 6:00 P.M. 
Meeting Conducted by Zoom 

https://zoom.us/j/94031844546?pwd=akY4VCtFUk1WVEdLQkUwTHA3WUpWdz09 
Password 628970 

 
  AGENDA 

 
  PRESENTED BY: 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER &  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Michael Wallace 
Board President 
 

II.  ROLL CALL Dee Antonio 
District Clerk 
 

III.  COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Oral 

This opportunity is provided for persons in the audience 
to make a brief statement, not to exceed three (3) minutes 
on issues or concerns not covered by the agenda. 
“Request to Speak” cards should be filled out in advance 
and presented to the District Clerk.  For the record, 
please state your name. 

 
B. Written 
 

 
 

IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Consideration of Amendments to the Pension 

Investment and Other Post-Retirement Benefits 
Investment Policies 

 

Motion Required 

V.  PRESENTATIONS 
A. Result of Annual Audit FY 2020  

 
 
 
 

B. Community Needs Assessment – 2020 Health 
Improvement Plan  

 

 
Will Cobb 
Price Waterhouse Cooper 
 
Sarah Ramos 
Price Waterhouse Cooper 
 
Lucy Hernandez  
Angus Cochran 

VI.  ACTIONS 
 
A. Consideration of Annual Audit FY 2020 

 
B. Consideration of Community Needs 

Assessment – 2020 Health Improvement Plan 
 

Motions Required 

https://zoom.us/j/94031844546?pwd=akY4VCtFUk1WVEdLQkUwTHA3WUpWdz09


Board Meeting Agenda 
October 28, 2020 

C. Consideration of Approval of Commercial 
Guaranty and Governmental Certificate in 
Connection with a Financing of Tenant 
Improvements for Ambulatory Surgery Center 

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS Kimberly Hartz 
Chief Executive Officer 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION
In accordance with Section 1461, 1462, 32106 and 32155 of
the California health & Safety Code and Sections 54962 and
54954.5 of the California Government Code, portions of this
meeting may be held in closed session.

A. Conference involving trade secrets pursuant to
Health & Safety Code section 32106  

B. Report of Medical Staff and Quality Assurance 
Committee, Health & Safety Code section 
32155 

Kimberly Hartz 
Chief Executive Officer 

IX. OPEN SESSION

Report on Closed Session 

Michael Wallace 
Board President 

X. ADJOURNMENT Michael Wallace 
Board President 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the District Clerk at (510) 818-6500.  Notification two working days prior to the meeting will enable the 
District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 



 

Washington Township Health Care District, 2000 Mowry Avenue, Fremont CA (510) 797-1111 
Kimberly Hartz, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 
DATE:  October 22, 2020 
                                                                             
TO:  Kimberly Hartz, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM: Chris Henry, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Amendments to the Pension Investment and Other Post-Retirement Benefits 

Investment Policies 
 
 
Attached for consideration by you and the Board of Directors are the revised investment policies 
for Washington Hospital’s Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits plans.  In consideration 
of current market conditions our investment manager, Wilshire Associates, is recommending 
revisions to our asset mix as follows: 
 
  Current Current Revised Revised 
  Target Range Target Range  
 
 Equity Class 55% 50% - 60% 55% 50% - 60% 
 
 Fixed Income Class 30% 25% - 30% 15% 10% - 20% 
 
 Diversifier Class 15% 10% - 20% 30% 25% - 35% 
 
Wilshire advises that these revisions also change the long-term earnings assumption for both 
plans to 7.0% from the current 7.2% 
 
I have discussed these changes with our investment consultant at Cambridge and Associates.  
Cambridge fully agrees with Wilshire’s recommendations.  The revised policies are attached for 
your review. 
 
In accordance with the District’s policies and procedures, it is requested that the Board of 
Directors approve the proposed amendments to the Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits 
Investment Policies as recommended by Wilshire and Associates. 
 



WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
OTHER POST- EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Statement of Investment Guidelines of Objectives and Policies

May 9, 2018;
Amended November 13, 2019; 
Amended October 28, 2020

INTRODUCTION

The following objectives and guidelines have been established by the Board of Directors in
order to administer the Washington Township Health Care District’s Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) portfolio investments in a manner consistent with applicable statutory
requirements.  The Board of Directors reserve the right to amend and change these
objectives and guidelines in the future as they deem prudent.

A.  INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

1. The overall financial objective of the OPEB investment portfolio is to meet present and
future obligations to beneficiaries, while minimizing long-term contributions to OPEB (by
earning an adequate return on OPEB assets), with moderate volatility in year-to-year
contribution levels.  In pursuit of this objective, all investment-related decisions will be made
with the goal of maximizing expected benefits to the OPEB and its beneficiaries.

2. The primary investment return objective of the OPEB portfolio is to provide a satisfactory
return on investment for the support of the above objective based upon the prudent investor
standard.  The specific investment objective of OPEB is to attain an average annual
nominal total return (net of investment management fees) over the long term (for a period
over 30 years annualized) of 7.0%. It is recognized that the nominal return objective may be
difficult to attain in every five-year period, but should be attainable over a series of five year
periods.

B.  AUTHORITIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1. The Board of Directors is responsible for approving the investment policy of the
Washington Township Health Care System’s OPEB portfolio.  The Board may authorize
the appointment of investment managers (who may also serve as named fiduciaries) and
any other investment advisor(s) as may be deemed appropriate in the execution of this
policy.

2. Under the direction of the Board of the District, the Chief Executive Officer or designee is
responsible for the implementation of this policy.

3. The Chief Executive Officer or designee should report investment activities of the OPEB
portfolio to the Board quarterly. This report should include, where appropriate, a maturity
schedule, current yield, market value, type of investment, institution and cost. In addition,
the report must include third party confirmation that investment activities are occurring
within the guidelines of this Policy.



C.  INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

1. The OPEB portfolio will be managed by external investment managers who may also be
designated as “a named fiduciary” as may be applicable.  The investment managers have
complete discretion to manage the assets in each particular portfolio to best achieve
OPEB’s investment objectives, within the guidelines set forth in this policy statement.

D.  PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION AND ASSET ALLOCATION

1. The total OPEB portfolio shall be diversified both by asset class (e.g., equities, bonds, and
cash equivalents) and within each asset class (e.g., within equities by economic sector,
industry, quality, size, etc.).  The purpose of diversification is to provide reasonable
assurance that no single security or class of securities will have a disproportionate impact
on the total OPEB portfolio.

The initial transition of OPEB portfolio assets into investments as directed by a new
Investment Manager will be spread over a 12-month period.

Where possible cash contributions will be netted with cash outflows to avoid excessive
investment transactions.

2. To achieve its investment objective, the OPEB portfolio shall be divided into three parts:  an
"Equity Class", a "Fixed Income Class" and a “Diversifier Class”.  The OPEB portfolio’s
long-term commitment to these asset classes shall be as follows:

Long-Term
Target Range

Equity Class 55% 50-60%

Core Fixed Income Class 15% 10-20%

Diversifier Class* 30% 25-35%

*Credit 10% 7-13% 
*Real Assets 20% 17-23% 

Over the long run, the allocation among the various classes is expected to be the single
most important determinant of the OPEB portfolio's investment performance.

Cash is held at the discretion of the investment managers, with the understanding that
performance will be measured against equity benchmarks (for equity managers) or fixed
income benchmarks (for fixed income managers).  The portfolio will be periodically
rebalanced through withdrawals, through the direction of new cash flow, or through
transfers of assets among investment managers.



3. The Equity Class:  The purpose of the Equity Class is to achieve a total return that, over a
market cycle provides for growth in principal and current income (along with that from the
Fixed Income Fund) sufficient to support current benefit payments, while in the long run
preserving the purchasing power of t6he OPEB portfolio 's assets.  It is recognized that the
pursuit of this objective could entail the assumption of greater market variability and risk.

4. The Equity Class has a target allocation of 55% of total OPEB portfolio assets at market
value.  Although the actual percentage of equities and equity reserves will vary with market
conditions, levels shall not exceed 60% or fall below 50%.  If out of compliance, the
investment manager will rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.
This performance shall be measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee.

5. The Fixed Income Class:  The purpose of the Fixed Income Class (bonds and cash
equivalents) is to provide further diversification and reduce the overall volatility of the OPEB
portfolio and therefore reduce the variability of contribution amounts to the OPEB portfolio.
This class also provides for a reduction in volatility of lower asset prices and is expected to
reduce the overall volatility of the OPEB portfolio, and to produce current income (to be
added to dividend income from the Equity Class) in support of current benefit payments.

6. The Fixed Income Class has a target allocation of 15% of total OPEB portfolio assets at
market value.  Although the actual percentage will fluctuate with market conditions, levels
shall not exceed  20% or fall below 10%. If out of compliance, the investment manager will
rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.  This performance shall be
measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee.

7. The Diversifier Class: The purpose of the Diversifier Class allocation (alternative
strategies or asset classes) is to provide uncorrelated sources of return from traditional
equity and fixed income classes.  This allocation is expected to provide further
diversification and reduce the overall volatility of the OPEB portfolio.

8. The Diversifier Class has a target allocation of 30%, of the total OPEB portfolio assets at
market value.  Although the actual percentage will fluctuate with market conditions, levels
shall not exceed 35% or fall below 25%.  If out of compliance, the investment manager will
rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.  This performance shall be
measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee.

9. Additions to principal shall be allocated to investment classes according to policy.

E.  GUIDELINES FOR THE EQUITY CLASS

1. The investment return objective for the Equity Class is to outperform broad market
benchmarks net of fees and costs, when measured over rolling three-year and five-year
periods, although performance over shorter and longer periods will be considered.  In
addition, investment manager performance will be measured against the median return of
an appropriate universe of investment managers with broadly similar investment styles.

2. The Equity Class will be broadly diversified according to country, region, economic sector,
industry, number of holdings, and other investment characteristics.  Multiple managers of
different focuses and styles should be considered if necessary to ensure sufficient
diversification of this allocation.



3. Decisions as to individual security selection, security size and quality, number of industries
and holdings, current income levels, and turnover are left to broad investment manager
discretion, subject to the usual standards of fiduciary prudence.  However, in no case shall
a single security or issuer exceed 10% of the market value of the Equity Class.  In addition,
no single major industry shall represent more than 25% of the market value of the Equity
Class.

4. Unless otherwise instructed, equity managers may at their discretion hold investment
reserves of either cash equivalents or bonds without limitation in terms of asset size or
period of time, but with the understanding that performance will be measured against all-
equity indexes as described above in paragraph E.1.

F.  GUIDELINES FOR THE FIXED INCOME CLASS

1. The investment return objective of the Fixed Income Class is to outperform broad market
benchmarks, net of costs and fees when measured over rolling three-year and five-year
periods, although performance over shorter and longer periods will be considered.

2. Fixed Income Class managers may employ active management techniques but changes in
overall portfolio duration should be moderate and incremental.  The Board may want to
discuss the duration guidelines with its fixed income managers to ensure that it is consistent
with the managers’ investment strategies.

3. To ensure sufficient diversification, multiple managers with different credit, region, strategy
focuses may be utilized.

4. In general, the fixed income portfolio shall be well diversified with respect to country, type,
industry, and issuer in order to minimize risk exposure.  However, obligations issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. Government may be held without limitation.

G. GUIDELINES FOR THE DIVERSIFIER CLASS

1. The objective of the Diversifier Class is to provide a return source not strongly correlated
with either the Equity Class or the Fixed Income Class, and therefore provide benefits of
reduced volatility of total fund returns.

2. The participating asset classes in the Diversifier Class may change from time to time,
based on the evolving market opportunity set.

3. Credit Opportunities and Real Assets classes are included in the Diversifier Class.  In
general, active management is to be utilized for this Class and broad market
benchmarks are to be used for performance measurement purposes.

H.  GUIDELINES FOR TRANSACTIONS



  

1. As a general guideline that should apply to all assets managed, investment managers are 
held to the highest fiduciary standards and all transactions should be entered into on the 
basis of best execution. 

 
 
 
I.  MONITORING OF OBJECTIVES AND RESULTS 
 
1. All objectives and policies are in effect until modified by the Board, which will review these 

at least annually for their continued pertinence. 
 
2. If at any time an investment manager believes that any aspect of the policy guidelines 

inhibits the investment performance of the account, it is the investment manager’s 
responsibility to clearly communicate this view to the Chief Executive Officer or designee as 
soon as reasonably possible. 

 
3. The OPEB portfolio will be monitored on a continual basis for consistency in investment 

philosophy, return relative to objectives, and investment risk as measured by asset 
concentrations, exposure to extreme economic conditions, and market volatility.  Portfolios 
will be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer or designee on a quarterly basis, but results 
will be evaluated over rolling three- to five-year periods.  However, the Staff will regularly 
review each investment manager in order to confirm that the factors underlying the 
performance expectations remain in place. 

 
4. In addition to the information required in Section B. of this Policy, each investment manager 

will report the following    information on a quarterly basis:  total return (on a time-weighted 
basis) gross and net of all commissions and fees, additions and withdrawals from the 
account, current holdings at cost and at market, and purchases and sales for the quarter.  
Regular communication concerning investment strategy and outlook is expected.  In 
addition, investment managers are required to inform the Chief Executive Officer or 
designee promptly of any material change in firm ownership, organizational structure, 
professional personnel, account structure (e.g., number, asset size and account minimum), 
major investment adjustments, or fundamental investment philosophy. 

 
5. Funds held pending deployment will not count towards portfolio benchmark monitoring. 

 
J.  MONITORING THE INVESTMENT MANAGER 
 
1. Investment manager performance should be measured by how they construct the risk and 

return characteristics of the OPEB portfolio as compared to the policy portfolio 
benchmark. 
 

2. The investment return of each Asset Class (Equity, Fixed Income and Diversifier) shall be 
compared to their market benchmark. 
 

3. The percentage of Class’s outperforming their benchmark over time shall be monitored for 
consistency of outperformance. 
 

4. The risk adjusted fund performance shall be measured against other like funds or peer 
group.   

 



May 9, 2018
Amended and Adopted by Board November 13, 2019 
Amended and Adopted by Board October 28, 2020

________________________________ 
Name & Title



WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
PENSION BENEFITS

Statement of Investment Guidelines of Objectives and Policies

May 9, 2018;
Amended November 13, 2019; 
Amended October 28, 2020

INTRODUCTION

The following objectives and guidelines have been established by the Board of Directors in
order to administer the Washington Township Health Care District Pension Plan (Pension)
portfolio investments in a manner consistent with applicable statutory requirements.  The
Board of Directors reserve the right to amend and change these objectives and guidelines in
the future as they deem prudent.

A.  INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

1. The overall financial objective of the Pension investment portfolio is to meet present and
future obligations to beneficiaries, while minimizing long-term contributions to PENSION (by
earning an adequate return on Pension assets), with moderate volatility in year-to-year
contribution levels.  In pursuit of this objective, all investment-related decisions will be made
with the goal of maximizing expected benefits to the Pension and its beneficiaries.

2. The primary investment return objective of the Pension portfolio is to provide a satisfactory
return on investment for the support of the above objective based upon the prudent investor
standard.  The specific investment objective of Pension is to attain an average annual
nominal total return (net of investment management fees) over the long term (for a period
over 30 years annualized) of 7.0%. It is recognized that the nominal return objective may be
difficult to attain in every five-year period, but should be attainable over a series of five year
periods.

B.  AUTHORITIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1. The Board of Directors is responsible for approving the investment policy of the
Washington Township Health Care System’s Pension portfolio.  The Board may authorize
the appointment of investment managers (who may also serve as named fiduciaries) and
any other investment advisor(s) as may be deemed appropriate in the execution of this
policy.

2. Under the direction of the Board of the District, the Chief Executive Officer or designee is
responsible for the implementation of this policy.

3. The Chief Executive Officer or designee should report investment activities of the Pension
portfolio to the Board quarterly. This report should include, where appropriate, a maturity
schedule, current yield, market value, type of investment, institution and cost. In addition,
the report must include third party confirmation that investment activities are occurring
within the guidelines of this Policy.



C.  INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

1. The Pension portfolio will be managed by external investment managers who may also be
designated as “a named fiduciary” as may be applicable.  The investment managers have
complete discretion to manage the assets in each particular portfolio to best achieve
Pension’s investment objectives, within the guidelines set forth in this policy statement.

D.  PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION AND ASSET ALLOCATION

1. The total Pension portfolio shall be diversified both by asset class (e.g., equities, bonds,
and cash equivalents) and within each asset class (e.g., within equities by economic sector,
industry, quality, size, etc.).  The purpose of diversification is to provide reasonable
assurance that no single security or class of securities will have a disproportionate impact
on the total Pension portfolio.

The initial transition of Pension portfolio assets into investments as directed by a new
Investment Manager will be spread over a 12-month period.

Where possible cash contributions will be netted with cash outflows to avoid excessive
investment transactions.

2. To achieve its investment objective, the Pension portfolio shall be divided into three parts:
an "Equity Class", a "Fixed Income Class" and a “Diversifier Class”.  The Pension
portfolio’s long-term commitment to these asset classes shall be as follows:

Long-Term
Target Range

Equity Class 55% 50-60%

Core Fixed Income Class 15% 10-20%

Diversifier Class* 30% 25-35%

*Credit 10% 7-13% 
*Real Assets 20% 17-23% 

Over the long run, the allocation among the various classes is expected to be the single
most important determinant of the Pension portfolio's investment performance.

Cash is held at the discretion of the investment managers, with the understanding that
performance will be measured against equity benchmarks (for equity managers) or fixed
income benchmarks (for fixed income managers).  The portfolio will be periodically
rebalanced through withdrawals, through the direction of new cash flow, or through
transfers of assets among investment managers.



  

3. The Equity Class:  The purpose of the Equity Class is to achieve a total return that, over a 
market cycle provides for growth in principal and current income (along with that from the 
Fixed Income Fund) sufficient to support current benefit payments, while in the long run 
preserving the purchasing power of the Pension portfolio 's assets.  It is recognized that the 
pursuit of this objective could entail the assumption of greater market variability and risk. 

 
4. The Equity Class has a target allocation of 55% of total Pension portfolio assets at market 

value.  Although the actual percentage of equities and equity reserves will vary with market 
conditions, levels shall not exceed 60% or fall below 50%.  If out of compliance, the 
investment manager will rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.  
This performance shall be measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee.  

  
5. The Fixed Income Class:  The purpose of the Fixed Income Class (bonds and cash 

equivalents) is to provide further diversification and reduce the overall volatility of the 
Pension portfolio and therefore reduce the variability of contribution amounts to the 
Pension portfolio.  This class also provides for a reduction in volatility of lower asset prices 
and is expected to reduce the overall volatility of the Pension portfolio, and to produce 
current income (to be added to dividend income from the Equity Class) in support of current 
benefit payments. 

 
6. The Fixed Income Class has a target allocation of 15% of total Pension portfolio assets at 

market value.  Although the actual percentage will fluctuate with market conditions, levels 
shall not exceed 20% or fall below 10%. If out of compliance, the investment manager will 
rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.  This performance shall be 
measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee.  

 
7. The Diversifier Class: The purpose of the Diversifier Class allocation (alternative 

strategies or asset classes) is to provide uncorrelated sources of return from traditional 
equity and fixed income classes.  This allocation is expected to provide further 
diversification and reduce the overall volatility of the Pension portfolio.  

 
8. The Diversifier Class has a target allocation of 30%, of the total Pension portfolio assets at 

market value.  Although the actual percentage will fluctuate with market conditions, levels 
shall not exceed 35% or fall below 25%.  If out of compliance, the investment manager will 
rebalance back to within target allocation ranges within 30 days.  This performance shall be 
measured by the Chief Executive Officer or designee. 

 
9. Additions to principal shall be allocated to investment classes according to policy.  
 

 
E.  GUIDELINES FOR THE EQUITY CLASS 
 
1. The investment return objective for the Equity Class is to outperform broad market 

benchmarks net of fees and costs, when measured over rolling three-year and five-year 
periods, although performance over shorter and longer periods will be considered.  In 
addition, investment manager performance will be measured against the median return of 
an appropriate universe of investment managers with broadly similar investment styles. 

 
2. The Equity Class will be broadly diversified according to country, region, economic sector, 

industry, number of holdings, and other investment characteristics.  Multiple managers of 



different focuses and styles should be considered if necessary to ensure sufficient
diversification of this allocation.

3. Decisions as to individual security selection, security size and quality, number of industries
and holdings, current income levels, and turnover are left to broad investment manager
discretion, subject to the usual standards of fiduciary prudence.  However, in no case shall
a single security or issuer exceed 10% of the market value of the Equity Class.  In addition,
no single major industry shall represent more than 25% of the market value of the Equity
Class.

4. Unless otherwise instructed, equity managers may at their discretion hold investment
reserves of either cash equivalents or bonds without limitation in terms of asset size or
period of time, but with the understanding that performance will be measured against all-
equity indexes as described above in paragraph E.1.

F.  GUIDELINES FOR THE FIXED INCOME CLASS

1. The investment return objective of the Fixed Income Class is to outperform broad market
benchmarks, net of costs and fees when measured over rolling three-year and five-year
periods, although performance over shorter and longer periods will be considered.

2. Fixed Income Class managers may employ active management techniques but changes in
overall portfolio duration should be moderate and incremental.  The Board may want to
discuss the duration guidelines with its fixed income managers to ensure that it is consistent
with the managers’ investment strategies.

3. To ensure sufficient diversification, multiple managers with different credit, region, strategy
focuses may be utilized.

4. In general, the fixed income portfolio shall be well diversified with respect to country, type,
industry, and issuer in order to minimize risk exposure.  However, obligations issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. Government may be held without limitation.

G. GUIDELINES FOR THE DIVERSIFIER CLASS

1. The objective of the Diversifier Class is to provide a return source not strongly correlated
with either the Equity Class or the Fixed Income Class, and therefore provide benefits of
reduced volatility of total fund returns.

2. The participating asset classes in the Diversifier Class may change from time to time,
based on the evolving market opportunity set.

3. Credit Opportunities and Real Assets classes are included in the Diversifier Class.  In
general, active management is to be utilized for this Class and broad market
benchmarks are to be used for performance measurement purposes.

H.  GUIDELINES FOR TRANSACTIONS



  

1. As a general guideline that should apply to all assets managed, investment managers are 
held to the highest fiduciary standards and all transactions should be entered into on the 
basis of best execution. 

 
 
 
I.  MONITORING OF OBJECTIVES AND RESULTS 
 
1. All objectives and policies are in effect until modified by the Board, which will review these 

at least annually for their continued pertinence. 
 
2. If at any time an investment manager believes that any aspect of the policy guidelines 

inhibits the investment performance of the account, it is the investment manager’s 
responsibility to clearly communicate this view to the Chief Executive Officer or designee as 
soon as reasonably possible. 

 
3. The Pension portfolio will be monitored on a continual basis for consistency in investment 

philosophy, return relative to objectives, and investment risk as measured by asset 
concentrations, exposure to extreme economic conditions, and market volatility.  Portfolios 
will be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer or designee on a quarterly basis, but results 
will be evaluated over rolling three- to five-year periods.  However, the Staff will regularly 
review each investment manager in order to confirm that the factors underlying the 
performance expectations remain in place. 

 
4. In addition to the information required in Section B. of this Policy, each investment manager 

will report the following    information on a quarterly basis:  total return (on a time-weighted 
basis) gross and net of all commissions and fees, additions and withdrawals from the 
account, current holdings at cost and at market, and purchases and sales for the quarter.  
Regular communication concerning investment strategy and outlook is expected.  In 
addition, investment managers are required to inform the Chief Executive Officer or 
designee promptly of any material change in firm ownership, organizational structure, 
professional personnel, account structure (e.g., number, asset size and account minimum), 
major investment adjustments, or fundamental investment philosophy. 

 
5. Funds held pending deployment will not count towards portfolio benchmark monitoring. 

 
J.  MONITORING THE INVESTMENT MANAGER 
 
1. Investment manager performance should be measured by how they construct the risk and 

return characteristics of the Pension portfolio as compared to the policy portfolio 
benchmark. 
 

2. The investment return of each Asset Class (Equity, Fixed Income and Diversifier) shall be 
compared to their market benchmark. 
 

3. The percentage of Class’s outperforming their benchmark over time shall be monitored for 
consistency of outperformance. 
 

4. The risk adjusted fund performance shall be measured against other like funds or peer 
group.   

 



May 9, 2018
Amended and Adopted by Board November 13, 2019 
Amended and Adopted by Board October 28, 2020

________________________________ 
Name & Title
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Washington Township Health Care District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 (unaudited) 

2 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The annual report consists of Management’s Discussion and Analysis, financial statements and notes to 
those statements and required supplementary information.  These statements are organized to present 
the Washington Township Health Care District (the District) and Washington Hospital Healthcare 
Foundation (the Foundation) as discrete financial entities, operating as a financial whole.  The Foundation 
was established to raise funds for the operation, maintenance, and modernization of the facilities of the 
District, its related corporations, and sponsored programs which benefit the District.  Readers should also 
review the accompanying notes to the financial statements as they provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the District’s and Foundation’s financial statements. 

The District is a political subdivision of the State of California organized under the Local Health Care 
District Law, as set forth in the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, and is considered a 
Local Government Agency.  The District’s mission is to provide broad healthcare services to its residents.  
The District’s boundaries encompass an area of approximately 124 square miles in southern Alameda 
County.  The District operates Washington Hospital (the Hospital), a 415-bed licensed acute care hospital 
located in Fremont, California. 

The District is the sole corporate member of Washington Township Hospital Development Corporation 
(DEVCO).  DEVCO was formed in 1984 to train medical personnel, develop medical treatment programs, 
perform medical research and development, and render medical services to the general public. 

DEVCO is the sole corporate member of Washington Township Medical Foundation (WTMF).  WTMF 
was formed in 2010 to operate a multi-specialty medical clinic under the applicable provisions of the 
California Health and Safety Code.   

Both DEVCO and WTMF are considered component units of the District, and are blended in the District’s 
financial statements. 

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Hospital, DEVCO 
and WTMF.  All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the financial 
statements. 

The statements of net position and the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 
provide an indication of the District’s and Foundation’s financial health.  The statements of net position 
include all of the District’s and Foundation’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources, using the accrual basis of accounting, as well as an indication about which portions 
of net position can be utilized for general purposes and which are restricted as a result of bond 
covenants, donor restrictions or other purposes.  The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position report all of the revenues and expenses and increases and decreases in net position during 
the time period indicated that resulted from the District’s and Foundation’s operating and non-operating 
transactions during the year.  For the District, the statements of cash flows report the cash provided and 
used by operating activities, as well as other cash sources and uses such as investment income, 
repayment of bonds, and capital additions and improvements. 

The financial statements as of June 30, 2019 and for the year ended June 30, 2019, have been revised to 
correct prior period errors as discussed in Note 1, “Revisions and Reclassification” to the  financial 
statements included in this Annual Report. Accordingly, Management’s Discussion and Analysis reflects 
the impact of those revisions.  For Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended June 30, 
2018, reclassification of contributions to the District resulted in a decrease in other operating revenues of 
$4,119, an increase in non-operating revenues of $128 and an increase in other changes in net position 
of $3,991.  As a result, for the year ended June 30, 2018, operating income decreased by $4,119 and 
non-operating revenues, net of expenses, increased by $3,991. 
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Washington Township Health Care District 

District Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2020 

 The District generated an operating loss of $35.4 million for fiscal year 2020, compared with an 

operating loss of $12.2 million for fiscal year 2019, a decrease of $23.2 million.  When non-operating 

income and special items are included, the District’s activities resulted in a $0.3 million increase in net 

position for fiscal year 2020.  

 Major items that impacted the District’s operating results for fiscal year 2020, as compared to those 

for fiscal year 2019, included: 

o In fiscal year 2020, the District, along with all other healthcare providers, was greatly impacted by 

the COVID-19 pandemic, the most significant disruption of the healthcare system in recent 

memory.  On March 4, 2020, the governor of California declared a State of Emergency in response 

to the pandemic.  On March 17, 2020, Alameda County issued a shelter-in-place order and all 

elective and non-emergency healthcare services were cancelled.  

o The District was not able to resume elective or non-emergent services until early May 2020, at 

which time a phased re-opening approach was developed, with the implementation of numerous 

additional safety initiatives for employees and patients. The resumption of services was slowed by 

limitations on COVID-19 testing capacity, in addition to residual concerns by community members 

about the risks associated with entering the hospital facilities. 

o For the eight months ended February 2020, the District’s patient days were down from the same 

period in fiscal year 2019 by three percent (1,365 days), while net patient revenues for the period 

exceeded the budget by $3.0 million and the prior year by $14.6 million.  With operating expenses 

exceeding the budget by $2.5 million and the prior year by $16.6 million, the District’s operating 

income for the eight month period of $1.8 million, while lower than the prior year period by $2.0 

million, was favorable by $0.7 million compared to the budgeted amount.  Due to the impact of 

COVID-19, by the end of June 2020, total net patient revenues were $19.1 million below budget 

and had decreased $20.8 million (4.0 percent) from fiscal year 2019, with a 13.1 percent decrease 

(8,019 days) in adult and pediatric patient days (53,231) compared to the prior fiscal year (61,250). 

o Total surgeries were down 2.0 percent from the prior year at the end of February and 14 percent by 

the end of June. Cardiac catheterizations for the eight months ended February 2020 were ahead of 

the numbers through February 2019 by 21.2 percent; by the end of June 2020, they were only 7.0 

percent ahead of the fiscal year 2019 numbers. 

o Operating expenses increased $4.1 million (0.8 percent), primarily due to depreciation expense 

increasing by $6.1 million (13.9 percent) with the Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion (the Hyman 

Pavilion), which opened in November 2018, in operation for twelve months in fiscal year 2020 

versus eight months in fiscal year 2019. Salaries and wages increased by $2.3 million (1.0 percent) 

however, benefits expense decreased by $3.8 million (4.5 percent), and supplies expense 

decreased by $2.0 million (3.0 percent). 

o Incremental expenses which were specific to the COVID-19 response included additional staffing in 

various areas: resource and registry nurses, temperature and symptom screeners at all entrances, 

additional environmental services staff to implement and expand disinfectant cleaning of high touch 
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surfaces and additional laboratory staff to process COVID-19 tests.  Supplies expenses for 

personal protective equipment (PPE) increased dramatically as the District competed with all other 

providers for masks, infection control gowns, and antibacterial cleaning products with scarce 

availability. Total incremental non-wage expenses of $1.7 million also included 1) the cost of 

implementing and outfitting a Rapid Screening and Treatment Unit (RSTU) as an ancillary location 

of the Emergency Department to segregate potential COVID-19 patients from other patients, 2) 

retrofitting of 57 additional patient rooms to accommodate the negative pressure requirement for 

COVID-19 patients, 3) reagents used to perform in-house testing and 4) send-out fees for testing 

not able to be performed in-house, due to limited availability of the necessary reagents.     

o Under the Federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the CARES Act), the 

District received Medicare advance loans totaling $60 million, and Provider Relief Funding totaling 

$30 million.  The Medicare advance loans are reflected as liabilities in due to third party payors on 

the statement of net position for fiscal year 2020. The Provider Relief Funding is reflected as 

federal grant revenue in the non-operating section of the statement of revenues, expenses and 

changes in net position for fiscal year 2020.  In August 2020, the District received additional 

CARES Act provider relief funding of $1.3 million. 

o In September 2020, HHS issued new reporting requirements for CARES Act provider relief 

funding.   The new requirements stated that the District must first identify healthcare related 

expenses attributable to coronavirus that another source had not reimbursed. If those expenses did 

not exceed the funding received, the District needed to demonstrate that the remaining provider 

relief funding was used for a negative change in calendar year 2020 patient care operating income 

compared to calendar year 2019. HHS would then be entitled to recoup amounts in excess of the 

negative change in patient care operating income reported net of healthcare related expenses.  

o In October 2020, based on concerns raised by providers and others regarding the reporting 

requirements issued in September, HHS amended the reporting requirements again.  The October 

amendment allows increased flexibility in how providers can apply provider relief funding toward 

lost revenues attributable to coronavirus.  After reimbursing healthcare-related expenses 

attributable to coronavirus that were unreimbursed by other sources, providers may now use 

remaining provider relief funding to cover any lost revenue, measured as a negative change in 

year-over-year actual revenue from patient care related sources. 

o Due to the continuing evolution of the reporting requirements there is at least a reasonable 

possibility that amounts recorded under CARES Act provider relief funding recognized by the 

District may change in future periods. 
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Analysis of the District’s Net Position – Fiscal Year 2020 

 Total assets increased $55.9 million, from $1,087.0 million at June 30, 2019 to $1,142.9 million at 

June 30, 2020.  Total available cash and investments increased $88.0 million, from $250.5 million to 

$338.5 million.  Bond drawdowns, to reimburse construction-related payments, resulted in a decrease 

in unexpended capital bond funds of $7.8 million.  Capital assets, net, decreased $41.1 million, from 

$738.8 million to $697.8 million.  

 In March 2020, the District, with the University of California, San Francisco (UCSF), completed the 

joint purchase of an 88,000 square foot building and approximately five acres of land in the Warm 

Springs section of Fremont.  The building was most recently used for manufacturing and includes 

approximately 30,000 square feet of office space.  The District and UCSF anticipate forming a joint 

venture to develop a health services complex on the site, providing a combination of primary care 

services, multi-specialty care services, urgent care and other outpatient services, an ambulatory 

surgery center and/or an outpatient pharmacy.  The District will be the majority partner with 51 percent 

of the investment, with UCSF as the minority investor with 49 percent.  The investment in this venture 

is reflected in other non-current assets in the District’s Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020. 

 Total liabilities increased $35.2 million, from $772.5 million at June 30, 2019 to $807.6 million at 

June 30, 2020.  Current liabilities increased by $65.6 million from $105.0 million to $170.5 million. The 

primary contributor to both of these increases was the Medicare payment advance loans of $60 

million, repayment of which was originally scheduled to begin in August 2020, but which has been 

postponed by the federal government pending further review.  This repayment will take the form of 

offsets against future payments due for services provided to Medicare patients. Within total liabilities, 

the impact of the Medicare advance loans was offset by a reduction in net pension liability of $31.7 

million, which was primarily attributable to higher than projected investment returns on pension assets 

for fiscal year 2020. 

 Total net position of $337.4 million at June 30, 2020 was $0.3 million more than the net position of 

$337.1 million at June 30, 2019. 
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Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, and net position as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Assets

Current assets 192,428$           161,238$           175,338$           

Long-term investment and restricted funds 234,880 181,568 222,586

Capital assets, net 697,785 738,844 738,497

Other assets 17,765 5,357 2,992

Total assets 1,142,858 1,087,007 1,139,413

Deferred outflows of resources 65,665 67,493 44,150

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,208,523$        1,154,500$        1,183,563$        

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities 170,545$           104,981$           129,041$           

Net pension liability 31,798 63,510 42,389

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) 42,578 37,299 70,252

Long-term debt 556,097 560,701 571,031

Other long-term liabilities 6,615 5,970 6,445

Total liabilities 807,633 772,461 819,158

Deferred inflows of resources 63,497 44,923 21,603

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 142,756 187,907 222,739

Restricted - expendable 29,301 29,276 32,216

Restricted for minority interest 3,666 4,301 4,799

Unrestricted 161,670 115,632 83,048

Total net position 337,393 337,116 342,802

Total liabilities, net position and deferred inflows of resources 1,208,523$        1,154,500$        1,183,563$         

 

Table 2 provides a summary of total available cash and investments as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018. 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments 103,643$           68,921$             87,075$             

Board-designated for capital and debt 212,395 151,688 147,128

Workers’ compensation fund 9,391 8,967 8,593

Unexpended capital bond funds, excluding amounts

 required for current liabilities 13,052 20,872 64,063

Restricted funds 42 41 2,802

Total available cash and investments 338,523$           250,489$           309,661$           
 

The District maintains sufficient cash, short-term investments and Board-designated balances to cover all 
short-term liabilities.  All excess cash is transferred to Board-designated funds for future needs. 
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Capital Assets, Net (2020) 

Capital assets, net, decreased $41.0 million, from $738.8 million at June 30, 2019 to $697.8 million at 
June 30, 2020.  This decrease resulted from $11.1 million in capital additions and $0.2 million in net 
capitalized interest expense, offset by $51.9 million in depreciation and a $0.4 million net loss on disposal 
of capital assets.  The net capital additions included $13.0 million in equipment, building, and land 
improvements combined with a decrease of $2.0 million in construction in progress.  At June 30, 2020, 
outstanding commitments related to capital projects totaled $0.5 million. 

Debt Administration (2020 and 2019) 

As part of the obligations under the bond indentures for the 2009, 2010, 2015, 2017A, 2017B and 2019 
Series Revenue Bonds, the District has agreed that the Hospital will maintain a long-term debt service 
coverage ratio of no less than 1.1 to 1.0 on a yearly basis.  As of June 30, 2020, the Hospital’s long-term 
debt service coverage ratio was 4.7 to 1.0.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Hospital’s long-term 
debt service coverage ratio was 3.5 to 1.0.  During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Moody’s credit 
rating for the Hospital’s revenue bonds was Baa1 (outlook negative). During the year ended June 30, 
2020, the rating was downgraded to Baa2 (outlook negative) due to weak operating cash flow projections 
for fiscal year 2020, based on activity through December 2019.  

The Hospital’s percentage of debt-to-capitalization, excluding general obligation bonds, of 29.6 percent at 
June 30, 2020, was lower than the percentage of 30.7 percent at June 30, 2019.  The decrease in 
percentage reflects the combined effect of the $0.4 million reduction in outstanding debt, excluding 
general obligation bonds, and the $25.0 million increase in the Hospital’s net position. 
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Revenue and Expense Analysis for the District – Fiscal Year 2020 

Table 3 shows the revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the District for the years ended 
June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Operating revenues

Net patient service revenues 499,516$          520,294$          505,529$          

Other 13,403 11,661 11,536

Total operating revenues 512,919 531,955 517,065

Operating expenses

Salaries and wages 229,485 227,166 209,685

Employee benefits 81,813 85,640 80,189

Supplies 63,811 65,798 60,562

Professional fees 66,844 66,348 65,044

Purchased services 39,499 40,626 38,752

Depreciation 49,931 43,829 34,032

Insurance 2,001 1,708 1,218

Other operating expenses 14,912 13,081 12,748

Total operating expenses 548,296 544,196 502,230

Operating income (loss) (35,377) (12,241) 14,835

Non-operating revenues and expenses

Federal grant revenue 29,948 - -

Other non-operating revenues and expenses, net 4,510 7,125 10,432

Total non-operating revenues and expenses 34,458 7,125 10,432

Increase (decrease) in net position before

 minority interest and restricted funds (919) (5,116) 25,267

Additional minority interest capital received - 349 -

Minority interest distributions (795) (1,483) (1,234)

Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion Transition - (2,402) -

Special use grant 1 - 1

Contributions used for capital expenditures 1,990 2,966 3,991

Increase (decrease) in net position 277 (5,686) 28,025

Net position

Beginning of year 337,116 342,802 314,777

End of year 337,393$          337,116$          342,802$          
 

Net Patient Service Revenues 

The District receives Federal funds through the Medicare program and State funds through the Medi-Cal 
program.  The District also receives funds through the Alameda County Medi-Cal HMO program.  These 
government payors account for approximately 70 percent of the District’s gross revenues.  Commercial 
preferred provider organizations (PPOs) and health maintenance organizations (HMOs) together 
comprise approximately 27 percent of gross revenues, with the balance of gross revenues attributable to 
uninsured individuals. 
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Net patient service revenues decreased by $20.8 million (4.0 percent), from $520.3 million in fiscal year 
2019 to $499.5 million in fiscal year 2020. COVID-19 was the most significant factor in this decrease, and 
unless otherwise indicated, accounts for the declines in the specific areas below.  Another major factor 
which impacted both inpatient and outpatient net patient revenues in fiscal year 2020 was related to joint 
replacements.  Over the past several years, Medicare has moved certain joint replacement procedures, 
which have historically been considered “inpatient-only”, to the outpatient setting, with associated 
reductions to the reimbursement for these procedures.  In 2018, total knee replacements were 
transitioned off the inpatient only list, and in 2020, total hip replacements were also removed from the list.  
Depending on various risk factors, these procedures may still be done as inpatient procedures; however, 
this is now the exception, rather than the rule. 

Inpatient Business Activity 

The District’s gross inpatient revenue decreased by $161.0 million (10.8 percent), from $1,495.6 million in 
fiscal year 2019 to $1,334.6 million in fiscal year 2020. 

Table 4 presents the patient days for each year and the percentage changes: 

2020 Days 2019 Days % Change

Specialty

Medical/surgical 40,515 47,364 (14.5)%      

Critical care 6,808 7,742 (12.1)%      

Special care nursery 1,290 1,319 (2.2)%        

Pediatrics 341 378 (9.8)%        

Obstetrics 4,277 4,447 (3.8)%        

Subtotal adult and pediatric patient days 53,231 61,250 (13.1)%      

Newborn 3,068 3,238 (5.3)%        

Total patient days 56,299 64,488 (12.7)%      
 

Admissions decreased by 1,369 (11.4 percent) from 11,984 in fiscal year 2019 to 10,615 in fiscal year 
2020 and the average length of stay decreased 2.0 percent, from 5.05 to 4.95 days, resulting in a 
decrease in adult and pediatric patient days of 8,019 (13.1 percent), as indicated in Table 4 above. 

The overall case mix index for the District, which is a measure of patient acuity, increased to 1.480 in 
fiscal year 2020, as compared to 1.463 in fiscal year 2019.  The Medicare case mix index for the same 
period increased from 1.628 to 1.692. 

Inpatient surgeries decreased by 384 (13.7 percent), from 2,802 in fiscal year 2019 to 2,418 in fiscal year 
2020.  Inpatient joint surgeries were down by 24 (3.5 percent), year over year, as of the end of February 
2020. 

Inpatient catheterization lab procedures increased by 340 (14.4 percent), from 2,360 to 2,700 in fiscal 
year 2019 and 2020, respectively.  The District’s expansion of its interventional radiology program, in 
fiscal year 2020, accounts for this increase, despite the impact of COVID-19. 

Deliveries decreased by 22 (1.4 percent), from 1,542 to 1,520.  
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Outpatient Business Activity 

The District’s gross outpatient revenue increased by $6.5 million (0.9 percent), from $748.3 million in 
fiscal year 2019 to $754.8 million in fiscal year 2020.  COVID-19 also significantly impacted outpatient 
volumes, and unless otherwise indicated, accounted for the declines in the activity measures below.  
Despite the declines in outpatient volumes, gross outpatient revenue increased, in part due to the 
movement of certain joint procedures from the inpatient to the outpatient setting, as discussed above. 

Emergency room visits decreased by only 196 (0.4 percent) from 51,722 in fiscal year 2019 to 51,526 in 
fiscal year 2020; however the fiscal year 2020 total includes 4,313 visits to the Rapid Screening and 
Treatment Unit (RSTU) which was mobilized outside of the main Emergency Department to manage 
COVID-19 intake activities.  Routine emergency department volumes were down by approximately 4,500 
visits.  

Outpatient visits decreased by 7,143 (7.9 percent) from 90,106 to 82,963 in fiscal 2020. Through the end 
of February 2020, these visits were projected to exceed fiscal year 2019 volumes by 9.2 percent. 

Outpatient surgeries performed at the hospital in fiscal year 2020 increased by 9 (0.5 percent), from 1,756 
to 1,765.  Through the end of February 2020, these volumes were projected to exceed fiscal year 2019 
volumes by 10.2 percent, with outpatient joint replacement surgeries exceeding fiscal year 2019 by 22.2 
percent, due to CMS removing some of them from the inpatient-only category. By the end of fiscal year 
2020, outpatient joint replacement surgeries exceeded those for fiscal year 2019 by 95 (12.7 percent). 
Outpatient catheterization lab procedures decreased by 10 (0.5 percent) from 1,838 to 1,828. The 
District’s expansion of its interventional radiology program, in fiscal year 2020, accounts for this volume 
decreasing only nominally, despite the impact of COVID-19.  

Outpatient visits at Washington Township Medical Foundation decreased by 7,065 (3.7 percent) from 
191,555 in fiscal year 2019 to 184,490 in fiscal year 2020.  Prior to COVID-19, these visits were projected 
to exceed fiscal year 2019 by seven percent.  Management quickly implemented a telehealth visit 
platform in early April 2020. WTMF provided over 13,500 telehealth visits in fiscal year 2020, which 
partially offset the loss of revenue from in-person visits. 

Deductions from Revenue 

Contractual allowance adjustments (expressed as a percentage of gross revenues) were 74.09 percent 
and 74.57 percent for fiscal year 2020 and 2019, respectively.  The decrease resulted from modest 
increases in Medicare and Medi-Cal inpatient payment rates. 

Charity Care 

The District provides care without charge to all patients who meet certain criteria under its Charity Care 

Policy.  Charity allowances are based upon the customary charges for the services provided under this 

program.  The District recorded $3.1 million and $2.7 million in foregone charges related to charity care 

for patient services during fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Patients who are eligible for charity 

care are generally those without insurance who also meet income eligibility criteria.  Private pay revenues 

decreased to $42.7 million in fiscal year 2020 from $54.2 million in fiscal year 2019. 

Included in the charity care totals are amounts associated with care for homeless patients.  In January 
2019, the State of California implemented Senate Bill 1152 (SB-1152).  SB-1152 is an additional 
unfunded mandate requiring California hospitals to provide certain services to homeless patients, 
including provision of a meal, clothing and transportation services, as needed.  Even more onerous than 
these requirements, however, is the requirement that these patients cannot be discharged until a 
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residence or a social services provider is located, and has agreed to accept the patient, which can result 
in lengthy discharge delays. 

In addition to the charity care described above, the estimated cost in excess of reimbursement for 
medically indigent patients under Medi-Cal and Medi-Cal managed care programs was $64 million and 
$67 million in fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively, and uncompensated services with an estimated 
total cost of more than $151 million in fiscal year 2020 and $150 million in fiscal year 2019, were provided 
to Medicare and Medicare managed care patients. 

Provision for Bad Debt 

The provision for bad debt (expressed as a percentage of gross revenues) was 1.97 percent in fiscal year 
2020, compared to 2.22 percent in fiscal year 2019.  The single largest contributing factor to this 
decrease was a decline in high dollar account write-offs in fiscal year 2020.  

Operating Expenses 

Total operating expenses were $548.3 million and $544.2 million for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, 

respectively, as summarized in the graph below:  
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Total operating expenses increased by 4.1 million (0.8 percent) from 2019 to 2020, with the largest dollar 
increase ($6.1 million) attributable to depreciation expense, and the next largest dollar increase 
attributable to salaries and wages ($2.3 million).  Benefits expense decreased by $3.8 million and 
supplies expense decreased by $2.0 million. 

Salaries and Benefits 

 Salaries and wages increased by $2.3 million (1.0 percent).  As of June 2020, approximately 65 
percent of the employees of the District are members of collective bargaining groups.  These 
employees receive periodic pay increases through the various Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) 
that have been approved by the District’s Board of Directors.  The increase in salaries and wages 
was attributable to increases in wage rates under the MOUs offset by a decrease in full time 
equivalents (see below). The District considers the increases under the MOUs to be in line with the 
current local wage environment. 
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 Total District’s full time equivalents (FTEs) at June 30, 2020 were 1,747 which reflects a decrease of 
13 FTEs (0.7 percent) from the 1,760 FTEs at June 30, 2019.  The Hospital FTEs at June 30, 2020 
were 1,476, a decrease of eight FTEs (0.5 percent) from the 1,484 FTEs at June 30, 2019.  To the 
extent possible, during the COVID shelter-in-place period from mid-March to mid-May 2020, the 
District reduced staffing of non-essential personnel, however additional staffing was needed for 
resource nurses to monitor donning and doffing of personal protective equipment for those caring for 
COVID patients, for pre-entry temperature and symptom screening of employees and patients, for 
increased facility cleaning efforts, and various other activities. 

 Benefits expense decreased by $3.8 million (4.5 percent).  The two largest components of this 
decrease were health insurance claims costs which decreased by $1.8 million (5.6 percent) and 
pension expense which also decreased by $1.8 million (8.2 percent).  Health insurance claims were 
reduced by lower demand and access to services by our benefited employees during the shelter-in-
place period, and were further reduced by stop loss reimbursements on several individually large 
claims in fiscal year 2020. Pension expense declined due to improved investment performance, offset 
by a reduction in the discount rate used to value future liabilities. 

Other Operating Expenses 

 Supplies expense decreased $2.0 million (3.0 percent) in fiscal year 2020, despite additional 
expenditures for PPE, due to reductions in the provision of services deemed non-essential.  
Expenses for prosthetics and implants, which declined by $1.8 million due to lower surgical volumes, 
accounted for the majority of the decrease. Depreciation increased by $6.1 million (13.9 percent) and 
insurance expense increased by $0.3 million (17.2 percent) in fiscal year 2020.  These increases 
were associated with the the Hyman Pavilion’s being operational for all twelve months of fiscal year 
2020, versus only eight months in fiscal year 2019. 

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses, Net 

Non-operating revenues and expenses, net, increased $27.3 million in fiscal year 2020.  The most 
significant changes in non-operating activity for fiscal year 2020 were the following items:  

 As discussed above, in fiscal year 2020, the District received federal grants under the CARES Act 
including $28.8 million for the Hospital, $0.8 million for WTMF and $0.3 million for DEVCO.  In 
addition, Washington Outpatient Surgery Center (WOSC) received a $1.6 million Payroll Protection 
Plan (PPP) forgivable loan.  WOSC expects the full amount of this loan to be forgiven, however, 
GASB guidance precludes recognition of this amount as revenue until confirmation of the forgiveness 
is received, which has not yet occurred. 

 Net interest expense increased by $4.5 million.  Although total interest cost for fiscal year 2020 was 
$1.8 million less in fiscal year 2020 than in fiscal year 2019, capitalized interest for fiscal year 2020 
was $6.3 million lower than the amount for fiscal year 2019, resulting in higher net interest expense.  
In November 2018, the Hyman Pavilion construction project was placed in service which reduced the 
amount of interest capitalized to construction projects.  The District’s construction projects were 
reduced to $7.4 million at June 30, 2020 from $10.4 million at June 30, 2019.  

 Bond issuance costs of $0.9 million expensed in fiscal year 2019 were related to the July 2, 2019 
refinancing of revenue and general obligation bonds in order to take advantage of favorable market 
interest rates.  No such costs were incurred in fiscal year 2020.   
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Payments from Federal and State Health Care Programs 

Entities doing business with governmental payors, including Medicare and Medicaid (Medi-Cal in 

California), are subject to risks unique to the government-contracting environment that are difficult to 

anticipate and quantify.  Revenues are subject to adjustment as a result of examination by government 

agencies as well as auditors, contractors, and intermediaries retained by the federal, state, or local 

governments (collectively “Government Agents”).  Resolution of such audits or reviews often extends (and 

in some cases does not even commence) for several years beyond the year in which services were 

rendered and/or fees received. 

Moreover, interpretation of the myriad of government regulations and other requirements is subject to a 
large degree of subjectivity.  For example, individual reviewers or auditors might disagree on a patient’s 
principal medical diagnosis, the medical necessity of a clinical procedure or the appropriate code for that 
procedure.  Such disagreements might have a significant effect on the ultimate amount of reimbursement 
due from the government.  Governmental agencies may make changes in program interpretations, 
requirements, or “conditions of participation,” some of which may have implications for amounts 
previously estimated.  In addition to varying interpretation and evolving codification of the regulations, 
standards of supporting documentation and required data are subject to wide variation. 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, to account for the uncertainty around 

Medicare and Medicaid revenues, the District estimates the amount of revenue that will be received under 

the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.  Amounts ultimately received or paid may vary from these 

estimates. 

Health Care Reform 

In 2012, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) and the Health Care and Education 

Reconciliation Act of 2012 (collectively the “Affordable Care Act” or “the ACA”) were signed into law.  The 

Affordable Care Act addressed a broad range of topics affecting the health care industry, including a 

significant expansion of healthcare coverage.  The coverage expansion was accomplished primarily 

through incentives for individuals to obtain and employers to provide health care coverage and an 

expansion in Medicaid eligibility.  The Affordable Care Act also included incentives for medical research 

and the use of electronic health records, changes designed to curb fraud, waste and abuse, and creates 

new agencies and demonstration projects to promote the innovation and efficiency in the healthcare 

delivery system.   

The ACA has been the subject of much political debate and disagreement and the current health care 

landscape remains heavily politicized and highly volatile.  Efforts to repeal and replace the ACA have 

been unsuccessful, in part due to the millions of people who would lose coverage under any of the 

proposals that have been brought forth.  Despite having been unsuccessful in repealing the entire ACA, 

Congress was able to eliminate the penalty for not having health insurance, and the administration issued 

new rules making it easier for people to buy cheaper insurance that covers fewer health care services.  In 

light of the continued changes and uncertainty in the healthcare environment, it continues to be 

exceedingly difficult for providers to make short-term plans or projections, much less make longer-term 

forecasts. 

During the period from 2013 through April 2020, automatic spending reduction provisions of the Budget 

Control Act of 2011 were in effect.  These spending reductions, also known as sequestration reductions, 

resulted in an on-going 2.0 percent reduction in all Medicare spending.  The reduction in reimbursement 

for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 was $1.8 million and $2.2 million, respectively.  As a component of 

COVID-19 relief under the CARES Act, sequestration reductions were temporarily suspended effective 

May 1, 2020 and had not been re-instituted as of June 30, 2020. 
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In addition to sequestration reductions, Medicare Disproportionate Share (DSH) payments to eligible 

hospitals were significantly reduced in 2014.  DSH payments are intended to partially offset the losses 

that providers incur when serving a disproportionate number of Medicare beneficiaries, as compared to 

other providers.  For fiscal years 2020 and 2019, DSH payments received were $4.8 million and $5.8 

million, respectively. 

Meaningful Use of Electronic Health Records 

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 established incentive payments under the 

Medicare and Medicaid programs for certain professionals and hospitals that demonstrated meaningfully 

use of certified electronic health record (“EHR”) technology to improve quality, efficiency and patient 

safety.  In fiscal years 2018 through 2020, revenues recognized related to Meaningful Use were not 

significant.  Beginning in fiscal year 2018 for Medicare EHR and in fiscal year 2020 for Medi-Cal EHR, the 

District is no longer eligible for additional incentive funding, as the Meaningful Use Programs have 

entered the penalty phase.  The District is compliant with all Meaningful Use requirements and has not 

incurred any penalties.  The District will continue to be required to report on a specified list of quality 

measures; failure to comply with these reporting requirements will result in downward payment 

adjustments. 

Economic Factors Expected to Affect the District’s 2021 Operations 

The Board of Directors of the District approved the fiscal year 2021 operating budget at their July 2020 

meeting.  The operating budget was developed after a review of internal and external forces, key volume 

indicators and trends.  It was based on the best information available during a time of unprecedented 

uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  The budget incorporates the District’s current 

Institutional Agenda as well as economic factors, such as estimated population growth and 

unemployment rates.   

Downward pressures on reimbursement are expected to continue.  In estimating net revenues for fiscal 

year 2021, the District has attempted to incorporate the continued effects of the changes in payments 

from government, commercial and third party payors, based on the available information, including 

recently negotiated multi-year reimbursement rate increases with certain commercial payors.  Likewise, 

the future state of the Bay Area economy, which is also difficult to predict, could have a significant impact 

on the District’s operations.  Additional legislation at either the State or Federal level may affect the 

accuracy of many of the assumptions included in the budget estimate. 

The fiscal year 2021 budget anticipates a slight increase in operating expenditures from the fiscal year 

2020 level.  This increase includes salary and wage increases, based on negotiated union contracts, 

offset by the effects of projected declines in patient volumes, due to an anticipated extended recovery 

period as patient confidence in seeking healthcare services returns. Marketing and advertising expenses 

are anticipated to increase by a small amount in fiscal year 2021.  All other expense categories are 

expected to decrease in fiscal year 2021, with the largest projected decreases in supplies and purchased 

services.  

The District continues to pursue opportunities to expand services and profitability, including a new joint 

venture investment in a new outpatient surgery center and the continued development of the Warm 

Springs joint venture with UCSF. 
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Washington Hospital Healthcare Foundation 

Foundation Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2020 

 Total assets of $4.8 million at June 30, 2020 decreased by $1.0 million from the balance at June 30, 

2019 of $5.8 million.  Total cash and investments decreased $0.6 million, from $3.9 million to 

$3.3 million, while net contributions receivable decreased $0.4 million from $1.8 million to $1.4 million. 

 Net position of $4.8 million at June 30, 2020 was $1.0 million lower than at June 30, 2019.   

Foundation Net Position – Fiscal Year 2020 

Table 5 provides a summary of the Foundation’s assets, liabilities, and net position as of June 30, 2020, 
2019 and 2018: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,494$               1,114$               1,550$               

Short-term investments 308 307 535

Short-term investments held by District on

 behalf of Foundation 1,364 2,376 2,860

Contributions receivable, net 1,445 1,827 2,962

Prepaid expenses and other 60 42 -

Long-term investments, unrestricted 111 110 -

Total assets 4,782$               5,776$               7,907$               

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses -$                       -$                       26$                    

Total liabilities - - 26

Net position

Restricted - expendable 4,569 5,631 7,848

Unrestricted 213 145 33

Total net position 4,782 5,776 7,881

Total liabilities and net position 4,782$               5,776$               7,907$               
 

 
Table 6 provides a summary of cash and investments for the Foundation as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 
2018: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 1,494$               1,114$               1,550$               

Certificates of deposit 419 417 535

1,913 1,531 2,085

Short-term investments held by District on

 behalf of Foundation 1,364 2,376 2,860
3,277$               3,907$               4,945$                
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Revenue and Expense Analysis for the Foundation – Fiscal Year 2020 

Table 7 shows the Foundation’s changes in net position for 2020, 2019 and 2018: 

(in thousands)

Total Total Total

Operating revenues

Contributions 1,323$           1,342$           4,523$           

Contributed services 425 638 572

Total operating revenues 1,748 1,980 5,095

Operating expenses

Donation to Pathways Hospice - 10 5

Donation to Washington Hospital Service League - - 8

Donation to District 2,056 3,025 4,119

Other operating expenses 735 1,103 1,235

Total operating expenses 2,791 4,138 5,367

Operating income (loss) (1,043) (2,158) (272)

Non-operating revenues and expenses

Investment income 49 53 92

Total non-operating revenues and expenses 49 53 92

Increase (decrease) in net position (994) (2,105) (180)

Net position

Beginning of year 5,776 7,881 8,061

End of year 4,782$           5,776$           7,881$           

2020 2019 2018
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Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The Foundation’s total operating revenues decreased $0.2 million from $2.0 million in fiscal year 2019 to 

$1.8 million in fiscal year 2020.  Contributions of $1.3 million in fiscal year 2020 were the same as in fiscal 

year 2019. 

Expenses 

Total expenses for the Foundation decreased by $1.4 million from $4.2 million in fiscal year 2019 to $2.8 
million in fiscal year 2020 (including the transfer of $1.2 million in funds designated for equipment for the 
Hyman Pavilion), as summarized in the graph below:  
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District Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2019 

 The District generated an operating loss of $12.2 million for fiscal year 2019, compared with operating 

income of $14.8 million for fiscal year 2018, a decrease of $27.0 million.  When non-operating 

revenues, expenses and special items are included, the District realized a $5.7 million decrease in net 

position for fiscal year 2019, compared with an increase of $28.0 million for fiscal year 2018. 

 Major items that impacted the District’s operating results for fiscal year 2019, as compared to those 

for fiscal year 2018, included: 

o Net patient revenues increased $14.8 million (2.9 percent), due primarily to a 5.0 percent increase 

in the number of adult and pediatric patient days (61,250) compared to the prior fiscal year 

(58,332). 

o Operating expenses increased $42.0 million (8.4 percent), primarily due to the increased inpatient 

volume and the opening of the Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion (the Hyman Pavilion) in 

November 2018, with salaries and benefits expense increasing by $22.9 million (7.9 percent), 

depreciation expense increasing by $9.8 million (28.8 percent) and supplies expense increasing by 

$5.2 million (8.6 percent). 

o The Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion (the Hyman Pavilion) opened on November 13, 2018. The 

Hyman Pavilion was built in response to an unfunded State mandate.  Under California State 

regulations, effective January 1, 2030, California hospital buildings must meet requirements that 

are intended to enable them to remain operational after a significant earthquake. Most of the 

funding burden related to this requirement is the responsibility of the hospitals and their 

communities. The Hyman Pavilion is the largest public works project in the history of the District, 

and its opening represents a pivotal moment for the community.  

The multi-story, 224,800-square-foot building expands the District’s ability to meet the community’s 

growing health care needs. The structure is built on a sophisticated base isolation system; making it 

one of the most seismically-sound structures in the southeast Bay Area. This advanced technology 

is designed to protect the Hyman Pavilion from severe damage in the event of an earthquake up to 

a 7.9 in magnitude.  This safety feature will enable the Hospital to remain open to the community, at 

a time when medical services will be needed most.  

The first floor of the Pavilion features a new Emergency Department (ED), which is four times the 

size of the former ED. On the second floor is a state-of-the-art Critical Care Unit with 48 beds, 

doubling the number of patients that can be served. The third floor has another 68 medical surgical 

beds. In the new family-friendly design, every patient has their own room for comfort, safety and 

privacy. Patient rooms have floor-to-ceiling windows for maximum natural light, which promotes 

patient healing. 

Analysis of the District’s Net Position – Fiscal Year 2019 

 Total assets decreased $52.4 million, from $1,139.4 million at June 30, 2018 to $1,087.0 million at 

June 30, 2019.  Total available cash and investments decreased $59.2 million, from $309.7 million to 

$250.5 million.  Bond drawdowns, to reimburse construction-related payments, resulted in a decrease 

in unexpended capital bond funds of $43.2 million. Capital assets, net, increased $0.3 million, from 

$738.5 million to $738.8 million. In November 2018, as discussed above, the Hyman Pavilion was 

placed into service, replacing the previous emergency and critical care units with expanded state-of-

the-art facilities. 
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 Total liabilities decreased $46.7 million, from $819.2 million at June 30, 2018 to $772.5 million at 

June 30, 2019.  The primary contributor to this decrease was the net postemployment medical liability 

(OPEB) which decreased by $33.0 million, from $70.3 million to $37.3 million, due to a change in the 

discount rate used to value the obligation.  Current liabilities decreased by $24.0 million from $129.0 

million to $105.0 million, attributable primarily to reductions in amounts payable for Pavilion 

construction costs.  Although the OPEB obligation decreased by $33.0 million, the pension obligation 

increased by $21.1 million due to investment losses incurred during calendar year 2018. 

 Total net position of $337.1 million at June 30, 2019 was $5.7 million less than the net position of 

$342.8 million at June 30, 2018. 

Capital Assets, Net (2019) 

Capital assets, net, increased $0.3 million, from $738.5 million at June 30, 2018 to $738.8 million at 
June 30, 2019.  This increase resulted from $41.9 million in capital additions and $5.8 million in net 
capitalized interest expense, offset by $47.3 million in depreciation.  The net capital additions included 
$63.2 million in equipment, building, and land improvements combined with a decrease of $21.3 million in 
construction in progress, primarily related to the Hyman Pavilion, which was completed on time and on 
budget, and which was placed in service in November 2018.  At June 30, 2019, outstanding commitments 
related to capital projects totaled $4.6 million. 

Debt Administration (2019 and 2018) 

As part of the obligations under the bond indentures for the 2009, 2010, 2015, 2017A and 2017B Series 
Revenue Bonds, the District has agreed that the Hospital will maintain a long-term debt service coverage 
ratio of no less than 1.1 to 1.0 on a yearly basis.  As of June 30, 2019, the Hospital’s long-term debt 
service coverage ratio was 3.5 to 1.0.  For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Hospital’s long-term debt 
service coverage ratio was 4.3 to 1.0.  During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital’s 
Moody’s rating of Baa1 (outlook negative) for its revenue bonds was unchanged.  

The Hospital’s percentage of debt-to-capitalization, excluding general obligation bonds, of 30.7 percent at 
June 30, 2019, was lower than the percentage of 32.1 percent at June 30, 2018.  The decrease in 
percentage reflects the combined effect of the $7.2 million reduction in outstanding debt, excluding 
general obligation bonds, and the $16.3 million increase in the Hospital’s net position. 

Revenue and Expense Analysis for the District – Fiscal Year 2019 

Net Patient Service Revenues 

The District receives Federal funds through the Medicare program and State funds through the Medi-Cal 
program.  The District also receives funds through the Alameda County Medi-Cal HMO program.  These 
government payors account for approximately 71 percent of the District’s gross revenues.  Commercial 
preferred provider organizations (PPOs) and health maintenance organizations (HMOs) together 
comprise approximately 25 percent of gross revenues, with the balance of gross revenues attributable to 
uninsured individuals. 

Net patient service revenues increased by $14.8 million (2.9 percent), from $505.5 million in fiscal year 
2018 to $520.3 million in fiscal year 2019. 

Inpatient Business Activity 

The District’s gross inpatient revenue increased by $0.3 million (0.0 percent), from $1,495.3 million in 
fiscal year 2018 to $1,495.6 million in fiscal year 2019. 
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Table 4 presents the patient days for each year and the percentage changes: 

2019 Days 2018 Days % Change

Specialty

Medical/surgical 47,364$             45,094$             5.0 %         

Critical care 7,742                6,663 16.2 %       

Special care nursery 1,319                1,521 (13.3)%      

Pediatrics 378                   332 13.9 %       

Obstetrics 4,447 4,722 (5.8)%        

Subtotal adult and pediatric patient days 61,250 58,332 5.0 %         

Newborn 3,238 3,408 (5.0)%        

Total patient days 64,488$             61,740$             4.5 %         
 

Although admissions decreased by 457 (3.7 percent) from 12,441 in fiscal year 2018 to 11,984 in fiscal 
year 2019, the average length of stay increased 9.1 percent, from 4.63 to 5.05 days, resulting in an 
increase in adult and pediatric patient days of 2,918 (5.0 percent), as indicated in Table 4 above. 

The overall case mix index for the District, which is a measure of patient acuity, decreased to 1.463 in 
fiscal year 2019, as compared to 1.484 in fiscal year 2018.  The Medicare case mix index for the same 
period decreased from 1.657 to 1.628. 

Inpatient surgeries decreased by 490 (14.9 percent), from 3,292 in fiscal year 2018 to 2,802 in fiscal year 
2019.  A significant factor in this decrease was the transition from inpatient to outpatient of knee 
replacement surgeries due to a change in Medicare regulations. 

Inpatient catheterization lab procedures increased by 398 (20.3 percent), from 1,962 to 2,360 in fiscal 
year 2018 and 2019, respectively.  The increase in this area is attributable to expansion of the District’s 
interventional radiology program. 

Deliveries decreased by 113 (6.8 percent), from 1,655 to 1,542. 

Outpatient Business Activity 

The District’s gross outpatient revenue increased by $138.4 million (22.7 percent), from $609.9 million in 
fiscal year 2018 to $748.3 million in fiscal year 2019.  The largest component of this increase was related 
to outpatient surgical revenues. 

Emergency room visits decreased by 113 (0.2 percent) from 51,835 in fiscal year 2018 to 51,722 in fiscal 
year 2019; however, outpatient visits increased by 3,101 (3.6 percent) from 87,005 to 90,106 in fiscal 
2019. 

Outpatient surgeries performed at the hospital in fiscal year 2019 increased by 763 (76.8 percent), from 
993 to 1,756. As mentioned above, the transition of knee replacement surgeries from inpatient to 
outpatient was a primary contributor to this increase.  

Outpatient catheterization lab procedures decreased by 102 (5.3 percent) from 1,940 to 1,838.   
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Outpatient visits at Washington Township Medical Foundation increased by 16,358 (9.3 percent) from 
175,197 in fiscal year 2018 to 191,555 in fiscal year 2019.  The main factors contributing to the increase 
were the acquisitions of a primary care and a urology practice during fiscal year 2019. 

Deductions from Revenue 

Contractual allowance adjustments (expressed as a percentage of gross revenues) were 74.57 percent 
and 73.93 percent for fiscal year 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The increase resulted from a slight 
increase in the proportion of patients covered by government payors, compounded by small increases in 
contractual rates for almost all payors. 

Charity Care 

The District provides care without charge to all patients who meet certain criteria under its Charity Care 

Policy.  Charity allowances are based upon the customary charges for the services provided under this 

program.  The District recorded $2.7 million and $4.1 million in foregone charges related to charity care 

for patient services during fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively.  Patients who are eligible for charity 

care are generally those without insurance who also meet income eligibility criteria.  Private pay revenues 

increased to $54.2 million in fiscal year 2019 from $49.0 million in fiscal year 2018. 

In addition to the charity care described above, the estimated cost in excess of reimbursement for 
medically indigent patients under Medi-Cal and Medi-Cal managed care programs was $67 million and 
$57 million in fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively, and uncompensated services with an estimated 
total cost of more than $150 million in fiscal year 2019 and $128 million in fiscal year 2018, were provided 
to Medicare and Medicare managed care patients. 

Provision for Bad Debt 

The provision for bad debt (expressed as a percentage of gross revenues) was 2.22 percent in fiscal year 
2019, compared to 2.01 percent in fiscal year 2018. 
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Operating Expenses 

Total operating expenses were $544.2 million and $502.2 million for fiscal years 2019 and 2018, 

respectively, as summarized in the graph below:  

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

$200

$220

$240

Salaries Benefits Supplies Professional
fees

Purchased
services

Depreciation All other
expense

In
 m

il
li
o

n
s

2019

2018

 

Total operating expenses increased by 42.0 million (8.4 percent) from 2018 to 2019, with the largest 
dollar increase ($17.5 million) attributable to salaries and wages expense, and the next largest dollar 
increase attributable to depreciation ($9.8 million).  Benefits expense increased by $5.4 million and 
supplies expense increased by $5.2 million. 

Salaries and Benefits 

 Salaries and wages increased by $17.5 million (8.3 percent).  As of June 2019, approximately 64 
percent of the employees of the District are members of collective bargaining groups.  These 
employees receive periodic pay increases through the various Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) 
that have been approved by the District’s Board of Directors.  The increase in salaries and wages 
was attributable to an increase in full time equivalents (see below) combined with increases in wage 
rates under the MOUs.  The District considers the increases under the MOUs to be in line with the 
current local wage environment. 

 Total District’s full time equivalents (FTEs) at June 30, 2019 were 1,760, an increase of 59 FTEs (3.5 
percent) over the 1,701 FTEs at June 30, 2018.  The Hospital FTEs at June 30, 2019 were 1,484, an 
increase of 55 FTEs (3.8 percent) over the 1,429 FTEs at June 30, 2018.  The increase in Hospital 
FTEs was primarily attributable to the opening of the Hyman Pavilion in November 2018. 

 Benefits expense increased by $5.4 million (6.7 percent).  The key factor contributing to this change 
was an increase in pension expense of $6.6 million (41.5 percent) over fiscal year 2018.  The 
increase was attributable to unfavorable investment performance of pension plan assets during 
calendar year 2018.  Partially offsetting this increase, OPEB plan expense was lower due to a change 
in the discount rate assumption which was the result of establishing and contributing to a trust 
account to fund these obligations. 
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Other Operating Expenses 

 Supplies expense increased $5.2 million (8.6 percent) in fiscal year 2019, with the majority of the 
increase related to expenses for pharmaceuticals, which increased by $2.0 million (18.9 percent).  
This increase was associated with a growth in infusion volumes by 27.3 percent.  In addition, 
expenses for prosthetics and other implants increased by $1.1 million (7.7 percent) as a result of 
growth in joint procedures by 5.6 percent, and expenses for cardiovascular and neurology supplies 
increased by $0.9 million (31.0 percent).  Depreciation increased by $9.8 million (28.8 percent) and 
insurance expense increased by $0.5 million (41.7 percent) in fiscal year 2019.  These increases 
were associated with the Hyman Pavilion’s placement in-service in November 2018.   

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses, net 

Non-operating revenues and expenses, net, decreased $3.3 million in fiscal year 2019.  The most 
significant changes in non-operating activity for fiscal year 2019 were the following items:  

 Net interest expense increased by $10.8 million.  Although total interest cost for fiscal year 2019 was 
$0.3 million less in fiscal year 2019 than in fiscal year 2018, capitalized interest for fiscal year 2019 
was $11.2 million lower than the amount for fiscal year 2018, resulting in higher net interest expense.  
Interest can only be capitalized while construction is in progress.  In November 2018, the Hyman 
Pavilion construction project was placed in service which reduced the amount of interest capitalized 
to construction projects. The District’s construction projects were reduced to $10.4 million at June 30, 
2019 from $392.2 million at June 30, 2018.  

 The fair value of investments increased by $6.3 million in fiscal year 2019. 

 Bond issuance costs of $0.9 million expensed in fiscal year 2019 were related to the July 1, 2019 
refinancing of revenue and general obligation bonds in order to take advantage of favorable market 
interest rates.  No such costs were incurred in fiscal year 2018.   

Other Changes – Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion Transition Costs 

Concurrent with the opening of the Hyman Pavilion, patients were moved into the building and building 
operations commenced on November 13, 2018.  The Pavilion move was anticipated and within the 
control of management.  Although the nature of the expenses (wages and training) was not unusual for 
the District, the expenses were significant and infrequent and, accordingly, qualified for treatment as a 
special item, reported separately before extraordinary items.  The total amount of the Hyman Pavilion 
Transition costs was $2.4 million. 
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Washington Hospital Healthcare Foundation 

Foundation Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2019 

 Total assets of $5.8 million at June 30, 2019 decreased by $2.1 million from the balance at June 30, 

2018 of $7.9 million.  Total cash and investments decreased by $1.0 million, from $4.9 million to 

$3.9 million, while net contributions receivable decreased $1.2 million from $3.0 million to $1.8 million. 

 Net position of $5.8 million at June 30, 2019 was $2.1 million lower than at June 30, 2018.   

Revenue and Expense Analysis for the Foundation – Fiscal Year 2019 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The Foundation’s total operating revenues decreased $3.2 million from $5.2 million in fiscal year 2018 to 

$2.0 million in fiscal year 2019.  Several individually large gifts restricted for the construction and 

equipping of the Hyman Pavilion, which was nearing completion as of the end of fiscal year 2018, in 

addition to a highly successful employee giving campaign effort, accounted for the significant amount of 

contribution revenue in that year.  Contributions of $1.3 million in fiscal year 2019 were $3.2 million less 

than the $4.5 million recorded in fiscal year 2018. 

Expenses 

Total expenses for the Foundation decreased by $1.2 million from $5.4 million in fiscal year 2018 to $4.2 
million in fiscal year 2019 (including the transfer of $2.7 million in funds designated for equipment for the 
Hyman Pavilion), as summarized in the graph below:  

$0.0

$0.3

$0.6

$0.9

$1.2

$1.5

$1.8

$2.1

$2.4

$2.7

$3.0

$3.3

$3.6

$3.9

$4.2

Donation to District Other operating expenses Other donations

In
 m

il
li
o

n
s

2019

2018

 

 



Washington Township Health Care District 
Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

25 
USDP-0198343 Washington Township Health Care District-10.25.20.V4 No Path.Doc\SANDY BEMISS\10/26/2020 3:47 PM 

(in thousands)

2020 2019 2020 2019

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 72,035$             35,335$             1,494$               1,114$               

Short-term investments 31,608 33,586 308 307

Short-term investments held by District on behalf of Foundation - - 1,364 2,376

Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for estimated uncollectibles

of $26,940 and $26,053 in 2020 and 2019, respectively 68,256 76,052 - -

Contributions receivable, net, due in less than 1 year - - 235 94

Supplies 4,146 3,659 - -

Other receivables 10,278 6,501 - -

Prepaid expenses and other 6,105 6,105 60 42

Total current assets 192,428 161,238 3,461 3,933

Long-term investment and restricted funds

Board-designated for capital, debt and workers’ compensation 221,786 160,655 - -

Held by trustee 13,052 20,872 - -

Restricted funds 42 41 - -

Unrestricted - - 111 110

Capital assets, net 697,785 738,844 - -

Other assets

Contributions receivable, net, due in more than 1 year - - 1,210 1,733

Other noncurrent assets 17,765 5,357 - -

Total assets 1,142,858 1,087,007 4,782 5,776

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources - goodwill 3,361 4,033 - -

Deferred outflows of resources - postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) 10,122 4,786 - -

Deferred outflows of resources - pension 52,182 58,674 - -

Total deferred outflows 65,665 67,493 - -

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,208,523$        1,154,500$        4,782$               5,776$               

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt 9,856$               8,892$               -$                       -$                       

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 22,474 26,847 - -

Due to foundation 1,364 2,376 - -

Due to third party payors and deferred revenue 67,441 3,508 - -

Accrued liabilities

Payroll related 14,994 13,048 - -

Vacation 16,425 16,175 - -

Health benefits 5,300 4,325 - -

Interest 11,247 11,933 - -

Other 21,444 17,877 - -

Total current liabilities 170,545 104,981 - -

Long-term liabilities

Workers’ compensation claims 6,615 5,970 - -

Net pension liability 31,798 63,510 - -

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) 42,578 37,299 - -

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 224,105 224,877 - -

Long-term debt, general obligation bonds 331,992 335,824 - -

Total long-term liabilities 637,088 667,480 - -

Total liabilities 807,633 772,461 - -

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources - postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) 21,280 25,487 - -

Deferred inflows of resources - pension 42,217 19,436 - -

Total deferred inflows 63,497 44,923 - -

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 142,756 187,907 - -

Restricted - expendable 29,301 29,276 4,569 5,631

Restricted for minority interest - nonexpendable 3,666 4,301 - -

Unrestricted 161,670 115,632 213 145

Total net position 337,393 337,116 4,782 5,776

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 resources and net position 1,208,523$        1,154,500$        4,782$               5,776$               

District Foundation
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(in thousands)

2020 2019 2020 2019

Operating revenues

Net patient service revenues 499,516$           520,294$           -$                       -$                       

Other 13,403 11,661 - -

Contributions - - 1,323 1,342

Contributed services - - 425 638

Total operating revenues 512,919 531,955 1,748 1,980

Operating expenses

Salaries and wages 229,485 227,166 - -

Employee benefits 81,813 85,640 - -

Supplies 63,811 65,798 - -

Professional fees 66,844 66,348 - -

Purchased services 39,499 40,626 - -

Depreciation 49,931 43,829 - -

Insurance 2,001 1,708 - -

Donations - - 2,056 3,035

Other operating expenses 14,912 13,081 735 1,103

Total operating expenses 548,296 544,196 2,791 4,138

Operating income (loss) (35,377) (12,241) (1,043) (2,158)

Non-operating revenues and expenses

Federal grant revenue 29,948 - - -

Investment income 3,897 4,279 49 53

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 4,346 3,638 - -

Interest expense, including amortization of premiums

 and discounts on bonds payable (22,298) (17,786) - -

Property tax revenue 17,026 17,185 - -

Bond issuance costs - (930) - -

Other non-operating income 1,539 739 - -

Total non-operating revenues and expenses 34,458 7,125 49 53

Increase (decrease) in net position before other changes (919) (5,116) (994) (2,105)

Minority interest - additional contributions from - 349 - -

Minority interest - distributions to (795) (1,483) - -

Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion transition - (2,402) - -

Special use grant 1 - - -

Contributions used for capital expenditures 1,990 2,966 - -

Increase (decrease) in net position after other changes 277 (5,686) (994) (2,105)

Net position

Beginning of year 337,116 342,802 5,776 7,881

End of year 337,393$           337,116$           4,782$               5,776$               

District Foundation
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(in thousands)

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from patient service activities 507,312$        510,036$        

Other cash receipts 13,403 11,661

Cash payments to suppliers (124,673) (191,944)

Cash payments to employees and employee benefit programs (314,158) (322,589)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 81,884 7,164

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Donation from Foundation to District 66 59

Sale of net assets to minority shareholders in

 Washington Outpatient Surgery Center, LLC - 349

Net assets distributed to minority shareholders in Washington

 Outpatient Surgery Center, LLC (795) (1,483)

Morris Hyman Critical Care Pavilion Transition - (2,402)

Federal grant revenue 29,948 -

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 29,219 (3,477)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Purchases of capital assets (13,047) (62,970)

Proceeds on sale of capital assets 164 -

Donation from Foundation to District 1,990 2,966

Principal paid on debt (14,202) (7,585)

Interest paid on debt (25,851) (26,590)

Proceeds from debt issuance, net of issuance costs 11,662 -

Proceeds from property taxes levied by the County 17,604 17,857

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (21,680) (76,322)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investments (300,481) (248,359)
Sales of investments 253,493 313,197

Investment income 4,519 5,641

Purchase of interest in equity investments (13,697) -

Other non-operating income received 3,443 4,184

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (52,723) 74,663

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 36,700 2,028

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year 35,335 33,307

End of year 72,035$          35,335$          

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) (35,377)$         (12,241)$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation 49,931 43,829

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 254 -

Provision for doubtful accounts 41,152 49,584

Amortization of goodwill 672 672

Pension funding (23,100) (28,875)

Postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) funding (4,891) (6,400)

Net change in deferred outflows and inflows 21,288 22,748

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivables (33,356) (59,842)

Supplies, prepaid expenses, and other current assets (4,255) 4,873

Other assets 1,289 (2,365)

Due to foundation (1,012) (484)

Due from/to third party payors 63,933 (2,628)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,448) 328

Payroll, vacation, and health accrued liabilities 3,171 2,072

Other liabilities 3,633 (4,107)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 81,884$          7,164$            

Noncash transactions

Capitalized interest 845$               7,123$            

Accounts payable and accrued expenses for capital assets 2,349 4,351

Proceeds from bond issuances deposited in irrevocable escrow accounts 52,497 -

Capitalized Leases - 1810

District
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

District 

Washington Township Health Care District (the District) is a political subdivision of the State of 

California organized under the Local Health Care District Law, as set forth in the Health and Safety 

Code of the State of California, and is considered a Local Government Agency (Local Agency).  It 

is exempt from federal and state income taxes.  The District’s mission is to provide broad 

healthcare services to its residents.  The District’s boundaries encompass an area of approximately 

124 square miles in southern Alameda County.  The District operates Washington Hospital (the 

Hospital), a 415-bed licensed acute care hospital located in Fremont, California.  Included within 

the District boundaries are the cities of Fremont, Newark and Union City, the southern portions of 

the city of Hayward and the unincorporated area known as Sunol. 

The District is the sole corporate member of Washington Township Hospital Development 

Corporation (DEVCO).  DEVCO was formed in 1984 to train medical personnel, develop medical 

treatment programs, perform medical research and development, and render medical services to 

the general public.  The DEVCO Board is appointed by the District’s Board.  DEVCO contractually 

operates a radiation oncology center and also operates an outpatient rehabilitation center and an 

urgent care clinic.  On July 1, 2010, DEVCO purchased a controlling interest in the Washington 

Outpatient Surgery Center, LLC (WOSC) and has blended its financial statements since this date.  

DEVCO is considered a component unit of the District, and is blended in the District’s financial 

statements based on the extent of District management’s involvement in, and oversight of, 

DEVCO’s operations and financial activity. 

DEVCO is the sole corporate member of Washington Township Medical Foundation (WTMF).  

WTMF was formed on November 1, 2010 to operate a multi-specialty medical clinic under the 

applicable provisions of the California Health and Safety Code.  WTMF is considered a component 

unit of the District, and is blended in the District’s financial statements based on the extent of 

District and DEVCO management’s involvement and oversight of WTMF’s operations and financial 

activity. 

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Hospital, 

DEVCO and WTMF.  All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated 

in the financial statements. 

Foundation 

Washington Hospital Healthcare Foundation (the Foundation), founded in 1982, is a California non-

profit corporation exempt from federal and state income tax.  The Foundation was established to 

raise funds for the operation, maintenance, and modernization of the facilities of the District, its 

related corporations, and sponsored programs which benefit the District.  Accordingly, the 

Foundation is considered a component unit of the District and is discretely presented in the 

District’s financial statements.  Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained 

from the Foundation at 2000 Mowry Avenue, Fremont, CA 94538. 
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Accounting Standards 

District 

Pursuant to Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement 62, Codification of 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 Financial 

Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(“AICPA”) Pronouncements, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the codified pronouncements and all subsequent applicable GASB 

pronouncements. 

Foundation 

As a private non-profit organization, the Foundation reports under the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board (FASB) standards, including generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-

profit organizations.  As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are 

different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features.  For purposes of the 

District’s financial statements, the Foundation’s financial statements have been conformed to 

GASB presentation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 

expenses during the reporting period.  The District’s most significant estimates relate to patient 

accounts receivable allowances, amounts due to third-party payors, self-insurance liabilities and 

employee benefit costs.  The Foundation’s most significant estimates relate to allowances for 

uncollectible pledges and net present value of contributions receivable.  Actual results may differ 

from those estimates. 

Proprietary Fund Accounting 

The District utilizes the proprietary fund method of accounting whereby revenues and expenses are 

recognized on the accrual basis and financial statements are prepared using the economic 

resources measurement focus. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three 

months or less.  Cash equivalents held in short-term investments and long-term investment and 

restricted funds are treated as investments and are not included in cash and cash equivalents on 

the Statement of Cash Flows.    

Due to the District’s status as a Local Agency, amounts in the District’s deposit accounts are 

considered to be public funds, which, by State statute, are required to be collateralized, with 

pledged securities, by the depository bank.  The value of the pledged securities, in addition to the 

deposit insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, equals or exceeds the 

District’s carrying value.  Collateral is held by the depository bank’s trust department in the name of 

the District. 

Contributed Services 

Certain general and administrative support to the Foundation is provided by the District.  The value 

of the services is recorded as a contribution to the Foundation and an equivalent amount is 

included in operating expense of the District. 
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Contributions Received 

Contributions are recognized by the Foundation as revenues in the period received.  

Promises to Give 

The Foundation records unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one 

year in contributions at net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be 

collected in future years are recorded at the present value of their future cash flows.  The discounts 

on those amounts are computed using rates representative of market participants’ perspectives.  

Among other things, this takes into consideration when the promise to give is expected to be 

collected, past collection experience, the Foundation’s policy on enforcing promises to give, and 

creditworthiness of the donor.  Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue.  

Conditional promises to give are not included as revenue until the conditions are substantially met. 

Donations Granted 

Donations granted by the Foundation are recognized as expenses in the period made and as 

decreases of assets or increases of liabilities, depending on the form of benefits given. 

Supplies 

The inventory of supplies is valued on a first-in, first-out basis. 

Long-Term Investment and Restricted Funds 

Long-term investments and restricted funds are invested in corporate debt securities, United States 

Treasury bonds and government agency debt issues.  These investments are measured at fair 

value, which is determined based upon quoted market prices.  These investments are exposed to 

various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks.  Investments set aside for future capital 

improvements, or for funding insurance are considered to be Board-designated funds.  These and 

other investments, whose use has been limited by financial arrangements, are classified as long- or 

short-term investment funds.  Investments whose use by the District has been limited by 

Foundation donors to a specific time period or purpose are classified as restricted funds. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  District assets with an original cost of $500 or more are 

considered capital assets.  Depreciation is provided over the useful life of each class of depreciable 

assets and is computed using the straight-line method.  Expenditures that substantially increase 

the useful lives of existing assets are capitalized.  Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed 

as incurred. 

Depreciable lives by property classification are as follows: 

Land improvements 2-25 years

Buildings 10-40 years

Equipment 3-20 years
 

Interest income and cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital 

assets are capitalized as a component of acquiring those assets. 
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, liabilities and net position, the statement of financial position includes 

separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.  A deferred 

outflow represents a consumption or use of net position, applicable to a future period that will not 

be recognized as an outflow (expense) until that future period.  Similarly, a deferred inflow 

represents an acquisition of net position, applicable to a future period that will not be recognized as 

an inflow (revenue) until that future period.  The District has deferred outflows of resources related 

to goodwill (described further under Business Combinations and Goodwill below), and both 

deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resources related to pension and other postemployment 

medical benefits (OPEB) both of which are described further under Note 10, Employee Benefit 

Plans. 

Business Combinations and Goodwill 

The District adopted GASB 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government 

Operations in fiscal year 2015.  In connection with this adoption, the goodwill associated with the 

July 2010 purchase of a controlling interest in the WOSC was assigned a life of fifteen years.  

Other operating expenses for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 each include annual expense of $0.7 

million for amortization of this goodwill.  

Within the Statements of Net Position, unamortized goodwill is reflected in Deferred outflows of 

resources – goodwill. 

There were no new business combinations in fiscal year 2020 or fiscal year 2019. 

Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 

assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural 

disasters; employee health, dental, and accident claims; and medical malpractice.  The District 

utilizes both commercial insurance and self-insurance for claims arising from such matters.  The 

District is self-insured with excess insurance above specified retention amounts for workers’ 

compensation claims, health, vision and dental claims. The District has commercial insurance 

coverage for professional and general liability, directors and officers liability, and property damage 

claims. 

Self-Insurance Plans 

The District is self-insured for workers’ compensation benefits for employees, up to a specified 

retention amount. An actuarial estimate of future claims payments, up to the retention amount, are 

accrued as a long-term liability.  This estimate is based on the expected, undiscounted payments.  

Assets have been set aside for future payments of workers’ compensation benefits, related 

expense, and the cost of administering the plan.  These assets are classified as long-term 

investment funds in the accompanying financial statements. 

The District provides eligible employees with health, vision and dental benefits through self-insured 

programs administered by Blue Shield, Vision Service Plan and Delta Dental, respectively.  The 

accrued liabilities for claims arising from these programs are estimated based upon annual 

actuarial reviews and are recorded at the expected, undiscounted amounts.  

The District is a member of and participates in a professional and general liability and also directors 

and officers liability coverage group insurance program through BETA Healthcare Group (BETA).  

BETA is a joint powers authority whose members are primarily district hospitals and county 

facilities in California.  Amounts paid to BETA by each member represent actuarially determined 
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assessments of claims payable, and estimated incurred, but not reported, claims that are adjusted 

periodically based on the claims experience for each insured member.  Claims in excess of 

specified insured limits are the responsibility of individual program participants. 

The District’s BETA professional and general liability insured program is on a “claims-made” basis, 

with a deductible and $40 million limits. The District converted coverage for these liabilities from 

occurrence-based to claims-made on July 1, 2004.  The District records actuarially-determined 

liabilities related to this coverage for 1) deductible amounts for currently open claims, 2) tail liability 

(based on claims associated with occurrences subsequent to July 1, 2004), and 3) unreported 

claims from occurrences prior to July 1, 2004 (subject to the deductible limit),.  The accrued 

liabilities are recorded at the expected, undiscounted amounts. 

Net Position  

Net position is composed of the following categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by outstanding principal balances of debt 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted - Expendable  

Net position, whose use is subject to externally-imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions 

of the District, pursuant to those restrictions, or that expire by the passage of time. 

Restricted for Minority Interest – Nonexpendable  

Net position of a legally separate organization attributable to other participants.  In July 2010, the 

District acquired the WOSC and concurrently sold a minority interest in the entity to area 

physicians.  No gain on sale was recognized upon the sale of the minority interest.  During 2020, 

the WOSC operations generated an operating loss of $0.3 million.  The District distributed a portion 

of the minority interest’s share of 2019 earnings in fiscal year 2020. 

Unrestricted 

Unrestricted net position that is neither restricted nor included in net investment in capital assets.  

Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by management or the Board of 

Directors. 

When an expense is incurred where both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available for 

use, the restricted net position is applied first. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

District 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the District to concentration of credit risk consist 

principally of cash equivalents and patient accounts receivable. 

The District invests its cash and cash equivalents in highly rated financial instruments including 

insured deposits and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  All of the District’s investments, 

including assets held by trustees, are collateralized and/or are held by the District, or its agent, in 

the District’s name.  Other than U.S. Treasury obligations, LAIF funds, and money market mutual 

funds, there is no significant concentration in one investment or group of similar investments. 

The District’s concentration of credit risk relating to patient accounts receivable is limited by the 

diversity and number of the District’s patients and payors.  Patient accounts receivable consists of 
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amounts due from governmental programs, commercial insurance companies, private pay patients 

and other group insurance programs.  Reimbursements from the Medicare program accounted for 

approximately 25 percent and 26 percent of the District’s net patient service revenues for the fiscal 

years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Medicare (16.4 percent) and Blue Cross 

Prudent Buyer (12.4 percent) are the only payors representing more than ten percent of the 

District’s net patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2020.  The District maintains an allowance 

for doubtful accounts based on the expected collectability of patient accounts receivable. 

Foundation 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Foundation to concentrations of credit risk consist 

principally of cash equivalents and pledged contributions receivable. 

The Foundation invests its cash and cash equivalents in highly rated financial instruments including 

insured deposits.  The District holds a portion of the Foundation assets in the District’s LAIF 

account. 

The Foundation maintains an allowance for uncollectible pledges based on the expected 

collectability of pledges.  The Foundation had 157 donor pledges, with the largest individual pledge 

representing approximately 37.1 percent of the total pledge receivable balance, as of June 30, 

2020.  The Foundation had 163 donor pledges, with the largest individual pledge representing 

approximately 32.7 percent of the total pledge receivable balance, as of June 30, 2019. 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to 

the provision of health care services are reported as operating revenues and expenses.  Peripheral 

or incidental transactions, which include federal grant revenues, property tax revenues, interest 

expense, investment income, changes in unrealized gains and losses, rental income and bond 

issuance costs are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Net Patient Service Revenues 

Net patient service revenues are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, 

third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments 

under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.  Reimbursement from third-party payors 

under various methodologies is based on the level of care provided.  Retroactive adjustments are 

accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in 

future periods as final settlements are determined.  Retroactive adjustments, related to prior years, 

including adjustments to prior year estimates, increased net patient service revenues by 

approximately $6.1 million in fiscal year 2020 and approximately $10.9 million in fiscal year 2019. 

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are complex and are subject 

to interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will 

change. 

Charity Care 

The District provides care without charge to all patients who meet certain criteria under its Charity 

Care Policy.  Because the District does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as 

charity care, they are not included in net patient service revenues.  The District subsidizes the cost 

of treating patients who are on governmental assistance, where reimbursement is below cost. 
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Other Revenues 

Other revenues include revenues from cafeteria, laundry, dietary and certain DEVCO operations.  

Other revenues also include funding under the State of California’s Public Hospital Redesign and 

Incentives in Medi-Cal (PRIME) program.  Amounts recorded for the PRIME program were $3.6 

million and $3.8 million in fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Interest Income and Expense 

Interest expense on debt issued for construction projects and income earned on the funds held 

pending use are capitalized until the projects are placed in service and are depreciated over the 

estimated useful life of the asset. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The District is required to evaluate prominent events or changes in circumstances to determine 

whether an impairment loss should be recorded and that any insurance recoveries be netted with 

the impairment loss.  Based on management’s evaluation, there were no impairment losses in 

fiscal years 2020 and 2019. 

Income Taxes 

District 

The District operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 115, and 

corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions.  As such, it is not subject to state 

or federal taxes on income.  However, income from the unrelated business activities of the District 

may be subject to income taxes. 

Foundation 

The Foundation is a California non-profit corporation; exempt from federal and state income tax as 

a 501(c)(3) organization. 

Federal Grant Revenue 

In fiscal year 2020, the District received CARES Act provider relief funding of $29.9 million. This 

amount included $19.4 million in funding attributable to a targeted distribution for safety net 

hospitals and $10.5 million in general provider distributions. The District recognized revenue 

related to the CARES Act provider relief funding based on information contained in laws and 

regulations governing the funding, as well as interpretations issued by the Department of Health 

and Human Services (HHS), that were publicly available at June 30, 2020.  

Property Tax Revenue 

The District receives property taxes that are assessed by Alameda County for the service of the 

general obligation bond principal and interest payments.  The District records these revenues as 

non-operating income. 

Special Item 

Concurrent with the opening of the Hyman Pavilion, patients were moved into the building and 

building operations commenced on November 13, 2018.  The Pavilion move was anticipated and 

within the control of management.  Although the nature of the expenses (wages and training) was 

not unusual for the District, the expenses were significant and infrequent and, accordingly, qualified 

for treatment as a special item, reported separately before extraordinary items.   

Contributions used for Capital Items 

Donations received that are restricted as to use, and have been used, for the purchase of capital 

items are reported as other changes to net position. 



Washington Township Health Care District 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

35 

Revisions and Reclassifications 

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, the 

District revised its previously issued June 30, 2019 financial statements. The revisions reflect the 

correction of certain prior period errors and omissions related to presentation and disclosure 

requirements in accordance with governmental accounting standards. While there were no impacts 

to the Statement of Net Position, there were certain impacts on the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the District, the Statement of Cash Flows for the 

District, and notes to the financial statements for the District and the Foundation. The corrections 

are as follows: 

(in thousands)
As Previously 

Reported Adjustments As Revised

Operating revenues

Contributions 3,025$               (3,025)$              -$                       

Total operating revenues 534,980 (3,025) 531,955

Operating loss (9,216) (3,025) (12,241)

Non-operating revenues and expenses

Other non-operating income 680 59 739

Total non-operating revenues and expenses 7,066 59 7,125

Decrease in net position before other changes (2,150) (2,966) (5,116)

Contributions used for capital expenditures - 2,966 2,966

Decrease in net position after other changes (5,686) - (5,686)

(in thousands)
As Previously 

Reported Adjustments As Revised

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Donation from Foundation to District 3,025$               (2,966)$              59$                    

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (511) (2,966) (3,477)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Donation from Foundation to District - 2,966 2,966

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (79,288) 2,966 (76,322)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investments (200,254) (48,105) (248,359)

Sales of investments 265,092 48,105 313,197

Net cash provided by investing activities 74,663 - 74,663

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

 provided by operating activities

Operating loss (9,216) (3,025) (12,241)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash -

 provided by operating activities -

Donations from Foundation (3,025) 3,025 -

Net cash provided by operating activities 7,164 - 7,164

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Statement of Cash Flows
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The District has also adjusted the fair value hierarchy level disclosure amounts associated with 

certain of its investments and pension assets for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Local Agency 

Investment Fund (LAIF), previously reported as a Level 2 investment in the fair value hierarchy for 

the District in the amount of $32,791 and a Level 2 investment in the fair value hierarchy for the 

Foundation in the amount of $2,376 for the related investment in LAIF held by the District on behalf 

of the Foundation, has been reclassified to amounts reported at Net Asset Value (NAV). See Note 

5, Fair Value, for more information. 

The District also reclassified $30,067 in mutual fund pension assets, previously reported as Level 2 

investments in the fair value hierarchy for the year ended June 30, 2019, as Level 1 investments. 

Additionally, pension assets were previously disclosed in total as 'money market and mutual funds'. 

However, in the current year, the District has expanded its presentation to display the variety of 

funds. See Note 10, Employee Benefit Plans, for more information. 

The District has also included condensed combining information for its blended component units for 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 as part of its 2020 comparative presentation in Note 13, 

Blended Component Unit Information. This information was not provided in the previously issued 

June 30, 2019 financial statements. 

The District also corrected the amount reported as covered payroll from 173,692 to 165,710 for its 

2019 fiscal year in relation to required other post-employment benefit (OPEB) disclosures. See 

Note 10, Employee Benefit Plans, for more information. 

Management has concluded that these revisions and reclassifications are not material, individually 

and in the aggregate, to the previously issued June 30, 2019 financial statements. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

 

Pending Adoption 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective for financial 

statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (fiscal year 2021 for the District), with 

earlier application encouraged.  The objectives of this Statement are to improve guidance 

regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes 

and how the reporting of these activities.  Management is currently evaluating the effect of this 

standard on the District’s financial statements. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for financial statements for 

periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (fiscal year 2022 for the District), with earlier adoption 

encouraged.  This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 

that were previously classified as operating leases.  For the District, these changes are expected to 

primarily impact the accounting for real property leases, and management is continuing to evaluate 

the effect of this standard on the District’s financial statements. 

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the 

end of a Construction Period, effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 

December 15, 2020 (fiscal year 2022 for the District), with earlier adoption encouraged.  The 

objectives of this Statement are to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about 

capital assets and to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of the 

construction period.  Management is currently evaluating the effect of this standard on the District’s 

financial statements. 
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In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of 

GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61, effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 

December 15, 2019 (fiscal year 2021 for the District), with earlier application encouraged.  The 

objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting an 

entity’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 

financial statement information for certain component units.  Management is currently evaluating 

the effect of this standard on the District’s financial statements. 

2. Patient Revenues 

Patient revenues consist of the following: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Gross patient charges

Routine inpatient services 370,723$        416,792$        

Ancillary inpatient services 963,920 1,078,848

Outpatient services 754,799 748,284

2,089,442 2,243,924

Less:  Charity care (3,086) (2,658)

Gross patient service revenues 2,086,356 2,241,266

Deductions from gross patient service revenues

Contractual allowances for statutory and negotiated rates 1,545,688 1,671,388

Provision for doubtful accounts 41,152 49,584

1,586,840 1,720,972

Net patient service revenues 499,516$        520,294$        

 

The District has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the District at 

amounts that differ from established rates.  Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare 

program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates-per-discharge.  These rates vary 

according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.  

The District also receives Medicare Disproportionate Share (DSH) reimbursements for services 

provided to a disproportionate percentage of low-income patients.  The Medicare program pays 

hospitals for outpatient services under the prospective payment system known as Ambulatory 

Payment Classifications (APCs).  Under APCs, the District is paid a prospectively determined rate 

based on the diagnosis and procedures provided to patients.  Outpatient physical therapy, speech 

therapy, occupational therapy, and laboratory are paid based upon prospectively determined fee 

schedules.  The Hospital is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate, with final 

settlements determined after submission of annual cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof 

by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.  The Hospital’s cost reports have been finalized for all fiscal 

years through June 30, 2016. 

Services provided to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries were reimbursed at negotiated per-diem rates 

for inpatient services provided through June 30, 2014.  Effective July 1, 2014, an All Patient 

Refined Diagnosis Related Group (APR-DRG) payment methodology replaced the per-diem 

reimbursement model.  Outpatient services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries are reimbursed according to a 

State fee schedule. 
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The District has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers 

and preferred provider organizations.  The methods for payment under these agreements include 

prospectively determined rates-per-discharge, discounts from established charges, and 

prospectively determined per diem rates.  The District receives reimbursement from various payors 

under the State of California Division of Workers’ Compensation program, based upon a 

pre-determined fee schedule. 

Billings relating to services rendered are recorded as net patient service revenue in the period in 

which the service is performed, net of contractual and other allowances, which represent 

differences between gross charges and the estimated receipts under such programs.  Net patient 

service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party 

payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under 

reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.  Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an 

estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as 

final settlements are determined.  Receivables for patient care are also reduced for allowances for 

uncollectible accounts. 

The process for estimating the ultimate collection of receivables involves significant assumptions 

and judgments.  Account balances are written off against the allowance when management 

determines it is probable the receivable will not be recovered.  The use of historical collection and 

payor reimbursement experience is an integral part of the estimation of reserves for uncollectible 

accounts.  Revisions in estimated reserves for uncollectible accounts are recorded as an 

adjustment to the provision for bad debts. 

At the current time there is uncertainty about reimbursements from government programs.  The 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services have proposed reductions in rates, which would result 

in a decrease in Medicare reimbursements.  The State budget contains proposed health care 

budget cuts that may affect reimbursements for non-contracted Medi-Cal services.  The ultimate 

outcome of these proposals and other market changes cannot presently be determined. 

State of California Assembly Bill (“AB”) 1383 of 2009, as amended by AB 1653 (Statutes of 2010)  

established a series of Medicaid supplemental payments funded through a “Quality Assurance Fee 

(QAF)” and a “Hospital Fee Program (Program)”, which are imposed on certain California hospitals.  

The original effective date of the HFP was April 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010 and is 

predicated, in part, on the enhanced Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentage (“FMAP”) contained 

in the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act (“ARRA”).  The Program was made permanent by 

the passage of Proposition 52 in November 2016.  The current Program relates to the period from 

January 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020.  The Program makes supplemental payments to hospitals 

for various health care services and supports the state’s effort to maintain health care coverage for 

children.  The District, designated as a public hospital, is exempt from paying the QAF; however, 

the District receives supplemental payments under the Program.  For fiscal years 2020 and 2019, 

the District recognized $3.1 million and $4.7 million, respectively.  Program revenues have been 

reported as net patient service revenues. 

Non-Designated Public Hospitals (NDPHs), including the District, were authorized, in 2011’s AB 

113, to use intergovernmental transfers (IGTs) to obtain federal supplemental funds for Medi-Cal 

inpatient fee-for-service payments.  The IGTs are used to bring NDPHs, in the aggregate, up to 

their federal upper payment limit (UPL).  The UPL is the federal maximum available under the 

Medicaid program, as calculated based on the actual costs of providing care.  For fiscal years 2020 

and 2019, the District recognized amounts under the IGT Program of $-0.8 million and $1.4 million, 

respectively, which have been reported as net patient service revenues. In fiscal year 2020, the 
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State announced that errors in various assumptions used by the State in their calculations for 

previous years’ AB113 distributions had resulted in payments exceeding the UPL.  The recoupment 

amount for fiscal year 2019 was $0.7 million which reduced the revenue recognized for fiscal year 

2020. There may be adjustments to other prior year calculations and the District has reserved an 

amount of $1.0 million for future adjustments; however, the actual adjustment of future adjustments 

has not been determined by the State. 

IGTs are also used to obtain federal supplemental funds for Medi-Cal managed care rates.  Medi-

Cal managed care rates are based on actuarial equivalents of fee-for-service rates.  When the 

equivalents are determined, the State sets payment rates for the managed care plans at the low 

end of a calculated range.  Public entities (such as the District) can provide voluntary contributions, 

for matching with federal Medicaid funds, to bring the payments up to the high end of the range.  

Health plans are provided with the available funding in the rate range and they negotiate with 

interested public entities in their area to improve the rates paid to those individual public providers.  

In fiscal year 2020, the District received $3.2 million in net rate range funding. There was no rate 

range funding received in fiscal year 2019. 

State of California Assembly Bill 915, Public Hospital Outpatient Services Supplemental 

Reimbursement Program, provides for supplemental reimbursement equal to the federal share of 

unreimbursed facility costs incurred by public hospital outpatient departments.  This supplemental 

payment covers only Medi-Cal fee-for-service outpatient services.  The supplemental payment is 

based on each eligible hospital’s Certified Public Expenditures (“CPE”), which are matched with 

federal Medicaid funds.  In fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the District recorded net patient service 

revenues of $0.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively, related to these payments.  In fiscal year 

2020, the State announced that they were recalculating amounts paid for previous years.  It is 

anticipated that these recalculations may result in recoupment of amounts previously recorded; a 

reserve of $1.0 million was established, based on preliminary calculations of the potential 

recoupment amount applicable to the District.  

The composition of gross patient revenues by major payor type is as follows: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Medicare and Medicare HMO 1,072,542$       1,153,012$       

Medi-Cal and Medi-Cal HMO 378,160 434,552

Commercial PPO, HMO and others 596,003 602,200

Private pay 42,737 54,160

Total gross patient revenues 2,089,442$       2,243,924$       
 

3. Charity Care 

The District maintains records to identify and monitor the level of direct charity care it provides.  For 

fiscal year 2020 and 2019, net patient service revenues exclude charges foregone for charity care 

services and supplies of approximately $3.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively.   

4. Related-Party Transactions 

The District held $1.4 million and $2.4 million as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of the 

Foundation’s assets in the District’s short-term investment account.  The Foundation donated $2.1 

million and $3.0 million to the District for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.  The District also 
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provides additional support for the Foundation by providing free space, utilities and other operating 

expenses to the Foundation. 

One of the District board members is an officer of the District’s primary banking institution.  As of 

June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively, the District’s balances on deposit with the primary 

banking institution were as follows: cash and cash equivalents - $72.0 million and 35.3 million, 

Board-designated for capital and workers compensation - $149.9 million and 142.3 million.  

Banking and investment fees paid were $0.1 million for fiscal year 2020 and $0.1 million for fiscal 

year 2019. 

5. Fair Value 

The fair value of certain assets has been estimated using available market information and 

appropriate valuation methodologies.  A fair market value hierarchy for valuation inputs has been 

established to prioritize them into levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair 

value are observable in the market.  The level assigned to a particular financial instrument is 

determined by the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

These levels are as follows: 

Level 1 Values are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) available in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities as of the measurement date.  Level 1 investments include 

equity securities and other publicly traded securities.  The District has no Level 1 

assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 Values are based on quoted prices in non-active markets, dealer quotations, or 

alternative pricing sources for similar assets or liabilities, for which all significant inputs 

are observable, either directly or indirectly.  Level 2 investments included fixed- or 

variable-income securities, commingled funds, certain derivatives and other assets 

that are valued using market information.  

Level 3 Values are based on inputs that are generally unobservable for the asset or liability 

and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.  

The inputs into the determination of fair value for Level 3 investments are based upon 

the best information available and may require significant management judgment.  

Level 3 investments include private equity investments, real estate and split interest 

agreements.  The District has no Level 3 assets or liabilities. 

Net Asset  

Value (NAV) Investments whose fair value is measured at NAV are excluded from the fair value 

hierarchy.  Investments in non-governmental entities that do not have a readily 

determinable fair value may be valued at NAV.  Types of investments which are 

measured at NAV include hedge funds, private equity investments and commingled 

funds.   

Not Leveled Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits in banks, certificates of 

deposit and money market funds.  Due to their short-term nature, the carrying 

amounts of these assets are considered to approximate their fair value. 
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The fair value of the District’s and Foundation’s investment assets, measured on a recurring basis 

at June 30, 2020, is reflected in the following table: 

Significant

Other

Observable Net Asset Cash

Inputs Value Equivalents

(in thousands) (Level 2) (NAV) (Not Leveled)

District

U.S. Treasuries 48,694$          -$                    -$                    

U.S. Agencies 31,680 - -

Corporate and municipal bonds 65,468 - -

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) - 80,682
1

-

Money market and mutual funds - - 39,964

Total Investments - District 145,842$        80,682$          39,964$          

1
Amount includes funds held on behalf of the Foundation (below).

Foundation

Short-term investments

Certificates of deposit -$                    -$                    308$               

Short-term investments held by District

on behalf of Foundation - 1,364 -

Long-term investment and restricted funds:

Certificates of deposit - - 111

Total Investments - Foundation -$                    1,364$            419$               

The fair value of the District’s and Foundation’s investment assets, measured on a recurring basis 

at June 30, 2019, is reflected in the following table: 

Significant

Other

Observable Net Asset Cash

Inputs Value Equivalents

(in thousands) (Level 2) (NAV) (Not Leveled)

District

U.S. Treasuries 56,564$          -$                    -$                    

U.S. Agencies 19,937 - -

Corporate and municipal bonds 63,998 - -

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) - 32,791
1

-

Money market and mutual funds - - 41,864

Total Investments - District 140,499$        32,791$          41,864$          

1
Amount includes funds held on behalf of the Foundation (below).

Foundation

Short-term investments

Certificates of deposit -$                    -$                    307$               

Short-term investments held by District

on behalf of Foundation - 2,376 -

Long-term investment and restricted funds:

Certificates of deposit - - 110

Total Investments - Foundation -$                    2,376$            417$               

 

Significant Level 2 instruments listed in the fair value hierarchy tables above use the following valuation 

techniques and inputs: 
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Fixed income funds consist of government securities and corporate bonds.  Where identical quoted 

market prices are not readily available, fair value is determined using quoted market prices and/or 

other market data for comparable instruments and transactions in establishing prices, as well as 

discounted cash flow models and other pricing modes.  These inputs to fair value are included in 

industry-standard valuation techniques such as the income or market approach. 

Investments valued at NAV are commingled funds which are highly liquid and for which there are 

no unfunded commitments. Excluding invested amounts related to bond proceeds, amounts may 

be withdrawn with 1 to 2 days’ notice, depending on the amount. For bond proceeds invested in the 

commingled funds, withdrawals are subject to a delay of up to 30 days, depending on the timing of 

the request. 

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are based on relevant market 

information about the financial instrument therefore changes in assumptions could significantly 

affect these estimates.   

Since the fair value has been estimated as of June 30, 2020 and as of June 30, 2019, the amounts 

that will actually be realized or paid at settlement or maturity of the instruments could be different. 

6. Long-Term Investment and Restricted Funds 

District 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, investment and restricted funds, at fair value, have been set aside 

as follows: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Long-term Investment and Restricted Funds

Board-designated for capital and debt 214,743$        156,039$        

Workers’ compensation fund 9,391 8,967

Funds held by trustee under bond indenture 42,312 50,107

Restricted funds 42 41

Total funds 266,488 215,154

Short-term investments – required for current liabilities (31,608) (33,586)

Total long-term investment and restricted funds 234,880$        181,568$        

 

Foundation 

Investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, at fair value, are summarized below: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Certificates of deposit 419$               417$               

Short-term investments held by District on

 behalf of Foundation 1,364 2,376

Total Investments 1,783$            2,793$            
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The District’s investment policy permits the following investments: 

Maximum

Average Maximum Maximum

Maturity Percentage Investment

Authorized investment type

U.S. Treasury obligations 10 years 100% none

U.S. Government agency securities 10 years 100% none

State of California or local agency obligations 5 years 100% none

Corporate bonds 5 years 30% none

Certificates of deposit 5 years 30% none

Mortgage pass-throughs 5 years 20% none

Commercial paper 270 days 40% 10%

Bankers acceptances 180 days 40% 30%

Repurchase agreements 1 year none none

Mutual funds N/A 20% none

As permitted As permitted

LAIF (State Pool Demand Deposits) N/A by law by law

 

As of June 30, 2020 the District had the following investments with maturities as follows: 

(in thousands) Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 More Than 10

Investment type

U.S. Treasuries 48,694$          7,747$            28,011$          12,936$          -$                    

U.S. Government agencies 31,680 1,098 19,058 3,406 8,118

Corporate bonds 65,468 9,430 54,759 1,076 203

LAIF (State Pool Demand Deposits) 80,682 80,682 - - -

Money market and mutual funds 39,964 39,964 - - -

Total investments 266,488$        138,921$        101,828$        17,418$          8,321$            

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 

As of June 30, 2019, the District had the following investments with maturities as follows: 

(in thousands) Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 More Than 10

Investment type

U.S. Treasuries 56,564$          4,594$            47,862$          4,108$            -$                    

U.S. Government agencies 19,937 313 11,190 2,087 6,347

Corporate bonds 63,998 1,616 62,170 212 -

LAIF (State Pool Demand Deposits) 32,791 32,791 - - -

Money market and mutual funds 41,864 41,864 - - -

Total investments 215,154$        81,178$          121,222$        6,407$            6,347$            

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 

Amounts invested in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund include funds 

designated for operations and for Board-designated purposes. 
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Interest Rate Risk 

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 

District’s investment policy, for assets that are Board-designated for capital, limits investments 

made by each investment manager to have an average maturity of not more than five years. 

Credit Risk 

The District’s investment policies are governed by State statutes that require the District to invest in 

highly rated and secure cash equivalents, and government and corporate debt securities.  The 

District’s policy requires that investments in corporate bonds be rated “A-” or its equivalent or better 

by a nationally recognized rating service under the “prudent man rule” (Civil Code Sect. 2261 et 

seq.) as long as the investment is deemed prudent and the type of investment is allowable under 

current legislation of the State of California (Government Code Section 53600 et seq.).  Should the 

rating fall below the required rating, the District’s policies provide for a period under which 

corrective action is to be taken.  Certain of the District’s investments as of June 30, 2020 were in 

the “corrective action required” category. 

The District’s investments at June 30, 2020 are rated as follows: 

(in thousands) Fair Value Ratings

Investment type

U.S. Treasuries 48,694$          Not rated

U.S. Government agencies 31,680 Not rated

Corporate bonds 65,468 See below

Local agency investment fund 80,682 Not rated

Money market and mutual funds 39,964 Not rated

Total Investments 266,488$        

 

(in thousands) Amount

Corporate bonds rating

AAA 5,541$            

AA+ 4,125

AA 9,178

AA- 8,895

A+ 8,433

A 17,507

A- 11,219

BBB+ 335

BBB 235  
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7. Capital Assets 

The District’s capital assets activity for fiscal year 2020 consisted of the following: 

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance

(in thousands) June 30, 2019 Increase Decrease June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 27,616$          -$                    -$                    27,616$          

Construction in progress 10,442 5,407 (8,425) 7,424

Total capital assets not being depreciated 38,058 5,407 (8,425) 35,040

Capital assets being depreciated

Land improvements 15,730 94 - 15,824

Buildings 784,932 2,783 - 787,715

Fixed and moveable equipment 375,358 11,400 (1,528) 385,230

Total capital assets being depreciated 1,176,020 14,277 (1,528) 1,188,769

Less:  Accumulated depreciation

Land improvements (13,555) (714) - (14,269)

Buildings (205,084) (29,671) 453 (234,302)

Fixed and movable equipment (256,595) (21,515) 657 (277,453)

Total accumulated depreciation (475,234) (51,900) 1,110 (526,024)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 700,786 (37,623) (418) 662,745

Total capital assets, net 738,844$        (32,216)$         (8,843)$           697,785$        
 

At June 30, 2020, the District was in the process of completing several construction and renovation 

projects.  Commitments related to these projects totaled approximately $0.5 million. 

The District’s capital assets activity for fiscal year 2019 consisted of the following: 

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance

(in thousands) June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 27,616$          -$                    -$                    27,616$          

Construction in progress 392,243 41,811 (423,612) 10,442

Total capital assets not being depreciated 419,859 41,811 (423,612) 38,058

Capital assets being depreciated

Land improvements 12,924 2,806 - 15,730

Buildings 391,049 393,883 - 784,932

Fixed and moveable equipment 343,090 32,792 (524) 375,358

Total capital assets being depreciated 747,063 429,481 (524) 1,176,020

Less:  Accumulated depreciation

Land improvements (12,044) (1,511) - (13,555)

Buildings (179,652) (25,432) - (205,084)

Fixed and movable equipment (236,729) (20,390) 524 (256,595)

Total accumulated depreciation (428,425) (47,333) 524 (475,234)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 318,638 382,148 - 700,786

Total capital assets, net 738,497$        423,959$        (423,612)$       738,844$        
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At June 30, 2019, the District was in the process of completing several construction and renovation 

projects.  Commitments related to these projects totaled approximately $4.6 million. 

The increase in the District’s accumulated depreciation includes both operating and non-operating 

depreciation as detailed below: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Change in accumulated depreciation

Operating depreciation expense 49,931$          43,829$          

Non-operating depreciation expense 1,969 3,504

Disposal of fixed assets (1,110) (524)

Total increase in accumulated depreciation 50,790$          46,809$          

 

8. Credit Facilities 

During the fiscal years 2020 and 2019, WOSC had a short-term $1.0 million revolving line of credit 

available.  The line of credit was renewed, through September 2021, upon expiration in 

September 2019.  There have been no draws under the line of credit since its inception. 

In fiscal year 2015, the District entered into an Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit (Standby LC) in 

the amount of $2.1 million in connection with the construction of the new parking garage 

(completed in August 2016) and the Hyman Pavilion (completed in November 2018).  No draws 

have been made under the Standby LC which expires March 1, 2021. 

9. Long-Term Debt  

The District issued general obligation bonds in November 2009 for the purpose of providing funds 

to pay costs related to the construction of a new Central Utility Plant and other major construction 

projects.  The repayment of the general obligation bonds will be funded through property tax 

assessments to residents of the District.  

The District issued revenue bonds in December 2009 to provide funds for the construction of a new 

building that houses the Center for Joint Replacement and several smaller capital projects.  To 

secure the payment of bond service charges and the performance of its other obligations under the 

indentures, the District has pledged, assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security 

interest in favor of US Bank N.A. (Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures.  

The District issued revenue bonds in November 2010 to provide funds for construction, renovations 

and expansion of space for medical use.  The funds were also used for the purchase of additional 

medical equipment and expansion of other service areas around the Hospital campus.  To secure 

the payment of bond service charges and the performance of its other obligations under the 

indentures, the District has pledged, assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security 

interest in favor of US Bank N.A. (Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures. 

In November 2013, the District issued two additional series of general obligation bonds (2013 

Series A and 2013 Series B), as approved by voters in elections in 2004 and 2012.  The combined 

amount of the two issuances was $145.5 million.  The 2013 bonds were issued to provide funds for 

the construction of a new parking structure and the Hyman Pavilion which will include facilities for 
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emergency care, intensive care and cardiac care services.  The repayment of these general 

obligation bonds will be funded through property tax assessments to residents of the District. 

In October 2015, the District issued revenue refunding bonds (2015 Series A) to refinance the 

outstanding amounts due on revenue bonds originally issued in 1999.  The refunded bonds were 

originally issued for the purpose of providing funds to pay costs associated with the acquisition, 

construction and renovation the Hospital’s facilities.  To secure the payment of bond service 

charges and the performance of its other obligations under the indentures, the District has pledged, 

assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security interest in favor of US Bank N.A. 

(Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures. 

Also in October 2015, the District issued general obligation bonds (2015 Series B) for $145.5 

million, the remainder of the amount approved by voters in the 2012 election.  The 2015 bonds will 

provide additional funds for the construction of the Hyman Pavilion, as described above.  The 

repayment of these general obligation bonds will be funded through property tax assessments to 

residents of the District. 

In June 2016, the District issued general obligation refunding bonds (2016 Series) to refinance the 

outstanding amounts due on previously issued 2006 general obligation bonds.  The refunded 

bonds were originally issued to provide funds to pay costs related to the construction of a new 

Central Utility Plant and other major construction projects.  The repayment of the 2016 Series 

general obligation bonds will be funded through property tax assessments to residents of 

the District. 

In April 2017, the District issued new money revenue bonds (2017 Series A) to provide funds for 

the continued construction and equipping of the Hyman Pavilion and other capital expenditures.  To 

secure the payment of bond service charges and the performance of its other obligations under the 

indentures, the District has pledged, assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security 

interest in favor of US Bank N.A. (Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures. 

In June 2017, the District issued revenue refunding bonds (2017 Series B) to refinance the 

outstanding amounts due on previously issued 2007 revenue bonds.  The refunded bonds were 

originally issued to provide funds for the construction of a new building for the Center for Joint 

Replacement and several smaller capital projects.  To secure the payment of bond service charges 

and the performance of its other obligations under the indentures, the District has pledged, 

assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security interest in favor of US Bank N.A. 

(Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures. 

On July 2, 2019, the District issued refunding and revenue bonds (2019 Series A) to provide new 

money for future capital expenditures and to refinance the outstanding amounts due on the 

previously issued 2009 Series A revenue bonds, in order to take advantage of favorable market 

interest rates.  The new money portion of the issuance was $11.0 million. The refunded 2009 

Series A revenue bonds’ principal amount of $46.1 million carried an average coupon rate of 6.2 

percent and was refunded as part of the $49.4 million 2019 Series A bonds with an average 

coupon rate of 4.00 percent and an effective interest rate of 3.2 percent. The cash flows required to 

service the refunded 2009 Series A revenue bonds to maturity would have been $81.6 million, and 

the cash flows required to service the refunding portion of the 2019 Series A bonds to maturity will 

be $57.6 million. The economic gain (the difference between the present values of the old and new 

debt service payments) associated with the refunding was $12.2 million.  The refunded 2009 Series 

A revenue bonds were originally issued to provide funds for the construction of the Center for Joint 

Replacement and several smaller capital projects.  To secure the payment of bond service charges 
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and the performance of its other obligations under the indentures, the District has pledged, 

assigned, and granted the Hospital’s revenues, as a security interest in favor of US Bank N.A. 

(Trustee), as defined in the Series indentures. 

Also on July 2, 2019, the District issued general obligation refunding bonds (2019 Series) to 

refinance the outstanding amounts due on previously issued 2009 Series A general obligation 

bonds, in order to take advantage of favorable market interest rates.  The refunded 2009 Series A 

general obligation bonds’ principal amount of $11.8 million carried an average coupon rate of 5.72 

percent and was refunded by new debt of $11.1 million with an average coupon rate of 3.15 

percent and an effective interest rate of 3.26 percent. The cash flows required to service the 

outstanding 2009 general obligation bonds to maturity would have been $23.3 million, and the cash 

flows required to service the 2019 Series refunding general obligation bonds to maturity will be 

$17.2 million. The economic gain associated with the refunding was $3.4 million. The refunded 

bonds were originally issued to provide funds for the construction of a new Central Utility Plant and 

other major construction projects.  The repayment of the 2019 Series general obligation bonds will 

be funded through property tax assessments to residents of the District. 

The District is also required to meet certain covenants, the most restrictive of which is related to 

debt service coverage.  The District has agreed that the Hospital will maintain a long-term debt 

service coverage ratio of no less than 1.1 to 1.0 on a yearly basis.  The District was in compliance 

with these covenants as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, maintaining debt service coverage ratios of 

4.7 to 1.0 and 3.5 to 1.0, respectively.  The Hospital is the sole member of the obligated group for 

these bonds. 

If, for any fiscal year, the long-term debt service coverage ratio falls between 1.0 and 1.1 to 1.0, the 

District is required to employ an independent consultant to make recommendations which will result 

in the long-term debt service coverage increasing to 1.1 to 1.0.  As long as the District complies 

with the recommendations and the long-term debt service coverage is no less than 1.0 to 1.0, no 

further actions are required of the District. 

In the event that the long-term debt service coverage ratio falls below 1.0 to 1.0, the Trustee, or a 

majority of the bondholders, shall be entitled to declare the bonds immediately due and payable. 

In fiscal years 2015 through 2019, WOSC entered into multi-year lease agreements for surgical 

equipment.  Amounts related to these obligations are included in current maturities of long-term 

debt and long-term debt, as appropriate.  

In December 2016, WOSC entered into an unsecured promissory note to finance the construction 

of a surgery center in Napa, California.  The original amount of the promissory note was $986,440 

at 4.5 percent with a maturity date of January 3, 2022.   
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A summary of the District’s revenue bond, general obligation bond and loans payable activity for 

the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending

Balance, Amortization Balance, Due Within

(in thousands) June 30, 2019 Additions /Other Repayments June 30, 2020 One Year

Bonds payable

2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually -$                     49,445$          -$                    -$                    49,445$           1,400$        

Plus: Issuance premiums - 4,371 (1,116) - 3,255 -

Total 2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds Payable - 53,816 (1,116) - 52,700 1,400

2019A General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually -$                     11,110$          -$                    -$                    11,110$           -$                

Plus: Issuance premiums - 156 (43) - 113 -

Total 2019A General Obligation Refunding Bonds - 11,266 (43) - 11,223 -

2017B Revenue Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 65,600$           -$                    -$                    (1,170)$           64,430$           1,225$        

Plus: Issuance premiums 2,991 - (402) - 2,589 -

Total 2017B Revenue Refunding Bonds Payable 68,591 - (402) (1,170) 67,019 1,225

2017A Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.325% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 37,020 - - (655) 36,365 680

Plus: Issuance premiums 1,087 - (149) - 938 -

Total 2017A Revenue Bonds PayableTotal 2017A Revenue Bonds Payable 38,107 - (149) (655) 37,303 680

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 2.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 28,535 - - (1,135) 27,400 1,180

Plus: Issuance premiums 2,504 - (403) - 2,101 -

Total 2016 Gen'l Obligation Refunding Bonds Payable 31,039 - (403) (1,135) 29,501 1,180

2015A Revenue Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.25% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 25,380 - - (1,815) 23,565 1,900

Plus: Issuance premiums 839 - (240) - 599 -

Total 2015A Revenue Refunding Bonds Payable 26,219 - (240) (1,815) 24,164 1,900

2015B General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 145,500 - - - 145,500 -

Plus: Issuance premiums 1,454 - (50) - 1,404 -

Total 2015B General Obligation Bonds Payable 146,954 - (50) - 146,904 -

2013B General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 4.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 105,000 - - (720) 104,280 1,080

Plus: Issuance premiums 2,145 - (180) - 1,965 -

Total 2013B General Obligation Bonds Payable 107,145 - (180) (720) 106,245 1,080

2013A General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 40,500 - - (280) 40,220 420

Plus: Issuance premiums 620 - (42) - 578 -

Total 2013A General Obligation Bonds Payable 41,120 - (42) (280) 40,798 420

2010 Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 5.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 51,785 - - (1,540) 50,245 1,615

Less: Issuance discounts (789) - 59 - (730) -

Total 2010 Revenue Bonds Payable 50,996 - 59 (1,540) 49,515 1,615

2009 Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 5.00% to 6.25%)

 payable semiannually 47,300 - - (47,300) - -

Less: Issuance discounts (533) - 533 - - -

Total 2009 Revenue Bonds Payable 46,767 - 533 (47,300) - -

2009 General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 4.50% to 5.75%)

 payable semiannually 11,755 - - (11,755) - -

Less: Issuance discounts (10) - 10 - - -

Total 2009 General Obligation Bonds Payable 11,745 - 10 (11,755) - -

WOSC 2017 Loan,

 principal and interest (at 4.50%) payable monthly 482 - - (203) 279 212

Total WOSC 2017 Loan Payable 482 - - (203) 279 212

Capital lease obligations

WOSC Capital Leases (2015 - 2019),

 principal and interest (at 3.49% to 5.00%) payable monthly 428 - - (126) 302 144

Total WOSC capital lease obligations 428 - - (126) 302 144

Total long-term debt payable 569,593$         65,082$          (2,023)$           (66,699)$         565,953$         9,856$         
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A summary of the District’s revenue bond, general obligation bond and loans payable activity for 

the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending

Balance, Amortization Balance, Due Within

(in thousands) June 30, 2018 Additions /Other Repayments June 30, 2019 One Year

Bonds payable

2017B Revenue Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 66,690$           -$                    -$                    (1,090)$           65,600$           1,170$        

Plus: Issuance premiums 3,424 - (433) - 2,991 -

Total 2017B Revenue Refunding Bonds Payable 70,114 - (433) (1,090) 68,591 1,170

2017A Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 37,655 - - (635) 37,020 655

Plus: Issuance premiums 1,251 - (164) - 1,087 -

Total 2017A Revenue Bonds Payable 38,906 - (164) (635) 38,107 655

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 2.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 29,640 - - (1,105) 28,535 1,135

Plus: Issuance premiums 2,954 - (450) - 2,504 -

Total 2016 Gen'l Obligation Refunding Bonds Payable 32,594 - (450) (1,105) 31,039 1,135

2015A Revenue Refunding Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.25% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 27,120 - - (1,740) 25,380 1,815

Plus: Issuance premiums 1,131 - (292) - 839 -

Total 2015A Revenue Refunding Bonds Payable 28,251 - (292) (1,740) 26,219 1,815

2015B General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.00%)

 payable semiannually 145,500 - - - 145,500 -

Plus: Issuance premiums 1,504 - (50) - 1,454 -

Total 2015B General Obligation Bonds Payable 147,004 - (50) - 146,954 -

2013B General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 4.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 105,000 - - - 105,000 720

Plus: Issuance premiums 2,338 - (193) - 2,145 -

Total 2013B General Obligation Bonds Payable 107,338 - (193) - 107,145 720

2013A General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 3.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 40,500 - - - 40,500 280

Plus: Issuance premiums 664 - (44) - 620 -

Total 2013A General Obligation Bonds Payable 41,164 - (44) - 41,120 280

2010 Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 5.00% to 5.50%)

 payable semiannually 53,250 - - (1,465) 51,785 1,540

Less: Issuance discounts (840) - 51 - (789) -

Total 2010 Revenue Bonds Payable 52,410 - 51 (1,465) 50,996 1,540

2009 Revenue Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 5.00% to 6.25%)

 payable semiannually 48,435 - - (1,135) 47,300 1,190

Less: Issuance discounts (582) - 49 - (533) -

Total 2009 Revenue Bonds Payable 47,853 - 49 (1,135) 46,767 1,190

2009 General Obligation Bonds,

 principal and interest (at 4.50% to 5.75%)

 payable semiannually 11,785 - - (30) 11,755 45

Less: Issuance discounts (11) - 1 - (10) -

Total 2009 General Obligation Bonds Payable 11,774 - 1 (30) 11,745 45

WOSC 2017 Loan,

 principal and interest (at 4.50%) payable monthly 725 - - (243) 482 203

Total WOSC 2017 Loan Payable 725 - - (243) 482 203

Capital lease obligations

WOSC Capital Leases (2015 - 2019),

 principal and interest (at 3.49% to 5.00%) payable monthly 389 181 - (142) 428 139

Total WOSC capital lease obligations 389 181 - (142) 428 139

Total long-term debt payable 578,522$         181$               (1,525)$           (7,585)$           569,593$         8,892$        
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A summary of the District’s revenue bonds and general obligation bonds issuance information is as 

follows: 

Original

Issue Maturity

(in thousands) Amount Date 2020 2019

Bond issue

2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds 49,445$         7/1/2048 2.98% N/A

2019A Gen'l Obligation Refunding Bonds 11,110 8/1/2039 2.95% N/A

2017B Revenue Refunding Bonds 66,690 7/1/2037 3.61% 3.57%

2017A Revenue Bonds 37,655 7/1/2047 3.90% 3.85%

2016 Gen'l Obligation Refunding Bonds 30,725 8/1/2036 2.19% 2.11%

2015A Revenue Bonds 30,290 7/1/2029 3.27% 3.16%

2015B General Obligation Bonds 145,500 8/1/2045 3.94% 3.93%

2013B General Obligation Bonds 105,000 8/1/2043 4.90% 4.88%

2013A General Obligation Bonds 40,500 8/1/2043 4.90% 4.88%

2010 Revenue Bonds 60,725 7/1/2038 5.53% 5.50%

2009 Revenue Bonds 55,000 7/1/2039 6.04% 6.28%

Effective

Interest Rate

 

The long-term debt payment requirements as of June 30, 2020, excluding unamortized discounts 

and premiums on bonds payable, are as follows: 

(in thousands) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

June 30,

7,176$       10,113$     2,680$       14,632$     9,856$       24,745$     

7,322 9,762 2,785 14,509 10,107 24,271

7,523 9,399 2,850 14,386 10,373 23,785

7,845 9,019 2,900 14,265 10,745 23,284

8,250 8,617 1,470 14,170 9,720 22,787

47,640 36,583 12,130 69,674 59,770 106,257

61,645 23,980 37,860 65,100 99,505 89,080

57,450 9,371 80,750 52,324 138,200 61,695

11,245 2,978 146,165 25,809 157,410 28,787

8,535 556 38,920 793 47,455 1,349

Total long-term debt, excluding

unamortized discounts and premiums 224,631$   120,378$   328,510$   285,662$   553,141$   406,040$   

Public Long-Term Debt Total Long-Term Debt

2046 - 2049

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Private Long-Term Debt

2026 - 2030

2031 - 2035

2036 - 2040

2041 - 2045

 

Components of interest expense include the following: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Total interest cost 23,143$             24,909$             

Capitalized interest expense (845) (7,123)

Net interest expense 22,298 17,786

Capitalized investment income 631$                  1,291$               
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10. Employee Benefit Plans 

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan 

The District maintains a defined benefit retirement plan, the Washington Township Health Care 

District Retirement Plan (the Plan), that covers all employees who meet certain eligibility 

requirements.  The Plan, as approved by the Board of Directors of the District, is a single employer 

plan funded solely by the District.  Benefits under the Plan are calculated based on the participant’s 

length of service, age at retirement, and average compensation as defined by the Plan.  

Employees are fully vested in the Plan after five years of service and are eligible to receive an 

unreduced benefit once they reach age 65.  An employee who attains age 62 and has completed 

20 years of service, or an employee who attains age 60 with 30 years of service is also eligible for 

an unreduced benefit.  The Plan also provides disability and death benefits.  The Plan does not 

issue a stand-alone financial report. 

Based on guidance under GASB 68, and the District’s intention to fully fund the Plan by 2023, the 

benefit discount rate is equal to the expected long-term (30 year) return on assets, which assumes 

that Plan assets will be invested in a diversified portfolio of stocks and bonds.  For further 

information regarding the development of the expected long-term return on assets, see the 

Required Supplementary Information included as part of these financial statements. 

The District has flexibility in determining the amount to contribute to the Plan each year.  In 

determining the amount of the annual contribution, the District considers the calculated actuarially 

determined contribution.  The District has adopted a funding policy that is intended to result in the 

funding status of the Plan reaching 100 percent, as calculated under the provisions of GASB 68.  In 

addition to the District’s contributions, under the terms of the California Public Employees’ Pension 

Reform Act (PEPRA), which became effective in January 1, 2013, new employees are required to 

contribute to the normal cost of their pension benefits.  The projected amounts of these employee 

contributions have been considered in determining the actuarially determined contribution amounts. 

Participant data for the Plan, as of the measurement date (January 1) for the indicated fiscal years, 

is shown in the table below: 

2020 2019

Active and suspended 1,509 1,448

Vested terminated 722 725

Retirees and beneficiaries 768 702

Total participants 2,999 2,875
 

Components of pension cost for years ended June 30, were as follows: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Pension cost

Service cost 9,075$               8,190$               

Employee contributions (1,655) (1,235)

Interest 27,395 26,693

Expected return on plan assets (23,603) (24,491)

Administrative expenses 226 224

Recognition of deferred amounts 9,224 13,135

Total pension cost 20,662$             22,516$             
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Components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2020 were 

as follows: 

(in thousands) Deferred outflows Deferred (inflows)

of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 4,662$                    (4,977)$                   

Change of assumptions 13,294 -

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 28,451 (37,240)

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 5,775 -

Total 52,182$                  (42,217)$                 
 

Components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2019 were 

as follows: 

(in thousands) Deferred outflows Deferred (inflows)

of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 10,213$                  (6,497)$                   

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 42,686 (12,939)

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 5,775 -

Total 58,674$                  (19,436)$                 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources – pension will be recognized in 

pension expense as indicated in the following table: 

Inflows Outflows Total

2021 (13,689)$        18,259 4,570

2022 (13,689) 12,425 (1,264)

2023 (7,518) 11,813 4,295

2024 (7,287) 3,128 (4,159)

2025 (34) 782 748

Thereafter - - -

(42,217)$        46,407$         4,190$           

Total deferred (inflows) and outflows of   

resources - pension
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The following table summarizes changes in net pension liability from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Total pension liability

Service cost 9,075$               8,190$               

Interest 27,395 26,693

Change in assumptions 16,421 (8,586)

Difference between expected and actual experience (703) -

Benefit payments (18,146) (16,330)

Net change in total pension liability 34,042 9,967

Total pension liability (beginning of year) 375,085 365,118

Total pension liability (end of year) 409,127 375,085

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 23,100 23,100

Employee contributions 1,655 1,235

Net investment income 59,371 (18,935)

Benefit payments (18,146) (16,330)

Administrative expense (226) (224)

Other - -

Net change in fiduciary net position 65,754 (11,154)

Fiduciary net position (beginning of year) 311,575 322,729

Fiduciary net position (end of year) 377,329 311,575

Net pension liability (end of year) 31,798$             63,510$             

Fiduciary net position as percent of liability 92.2% 83.1%

Covered payroll (pension) 186,174 173,692

Net pension liability as percent of covered payroll 17.1% 36.6%  
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The following table summarizes the actuarial assumptions used to determine net pension liability 

and plan fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 (unless otherwise indicated, 

the same assumption was used for the valuations for both years): 

Valuation date January 1

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal, Level Percent of Pay

Amortization method Straight Line

Asset valuation method Fair Value

Economic assumptions (including 3% inflation)

Projected salary increases 3.00%

Discount rate January 1, 2020 - 7.00%

January 1, 2019 - 7.50%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality table for healthy participants January 1, 2020 - Pri-2012 tables and projected forward using

MP-2019 projection scale on a generational basis

January 1, 2019 - RP-2014 base table with two-dimensional  

projection scale BB projected generationally

Mortality table for disabled participants January 1, 2020 - Pri-2012 tables and projected forward using

MP-2019 projection scale on a generational basis

January 1, 2019 - RP-2014 Disabled retiree table                  

Sensitivity of net pension liability at January 1, 2020

 to changes in the discount rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease (6.0%) $81,930,000

Current discount rate (7.0%) 31,798,000                                                                     

1 percent increase (8.0%) (10,226,000)                                                                    

Sensitivity of net pension liability at January 1, 2019

 to changes in the discount rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease (6.5%) $109,634,000

Current discount rate (7.5%) 63,510,000                                                                     

1 percent increase (8.5%) 24,994,000                                                                     
 

The fair value of the District’s pension investments measured as of January 1, 2020, and used for 

the purpose of the June 30, 2020 valuation, is reflected in the following table: 

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical Cash And Cash

Assets Equivalents Balance At

(in thousands) (Level 1) (Not Leveled) Valuation Date

Money market funds -$                       1,925$               1,925$               

Fixed income funds 159,399 - 159,399

Domestic equity funds 116,194 - 116,194

International equity funds 92,020 - 92,020

Commodity funds 3,592 - 3,592

Real estate funds 4,199 - 4,199

Total pension assets 375,404$           1,925$               377,329$            
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The fair value of the District’s pension investments measured as of January 1, 2019, and used for 

the purpose of the June 30, 2019 valuation, is reflected in the following table: 

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical Cash And Cash

Assets Equivalents Balance At

(in thousands) (Level 1) (Not Leveled) Valuation Date

Money market funds -$                       2,163$               2,163$               

Fixed income funds 114,776 - 114,776

Domestic equity funds 109,220 - 109,220

International equity funds 77,464 - 77,464

Commodity funds 3,774 - 3,774

Real estate funds 4,178 - 4,178

Total pension assets 309,412$           2,163$               311,575$            

For a description of the levels used for valuation, information about the valuation techniques and 

inputs used to measure the fair value of plan assets, see discussion regarding fair value 

measurements in Note 5. 

The District also has a Deferred Compensation Plan available to employees.  Generally, any 

employee is eligible to voluntarily enter into an agreement with the District to defer current wages at 

amounts limited by federal law.  Effective January 1, 2010, under the terms of the Washington 

Township Health Care District Employer Matching Contributions Plan (the Matching Plan), the 

District matches participant contributions, for employees with a minimum of 1,000 hours in a 

benefitted status, to a maximum of 1.5 percent of gross earnings.  Under the deferred 

compensation plan and the Matching Plan agreements, the District purchases annuity contracts for 

various investments.  All investment earnings, including market value appreciation and 

depreciation, are set aside in trusts for the benefit of the participants. 

Matching contributions made by the District in fiscal years 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 

(in thousands) Employee

Deductions

Contribution Year Amount Being Matched

2020 2,118$               Calendar year 2019

2019 1,998$               Calendar year 2018

 

Defined Benefit Postemployment Medical Plan 

Other postemployment benefits are provided by the District through a single employer defined 

benefit postemployment medical plan, the Washington Township Health Care District 

Postretirement Medical Plan (the OPEB Plan).  The OPEB Plan provides benefits for salaried and 

non-salaried employees, as approved and/or amended by the Board of Directors of the District, and 
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is administered by the District.  Eligible individuals are those retiring directly from the District, at a 

minimum age of 55, with a minimum of fifteen years of service, who have been continuously in a 

benefited status for the five years prior to their retirement date. 

Eligible retirees who are less than age 65, with at least fifteen years of service, are eligible for 

coverage under the Blue Shield Retiree Medical Plan, with the District providing premium subsidies 

of from 35 percent (with 15 years of service) to 100 percent (with 30 years of service).    Eligible 

retirees with at least twenty years of service may elect coverage under the Blue Shield Retiree 

Medical Plan or may elect to receive a monthly reimbursement for medical expenses up to a 

stipulated amount under the Retiree Medical Reimbursement Plan. This reimbursement amount is 

fixed and is not subject to future increases under the current terms of the OPEB Plan. Participation 

in either the Blue Shield Retiree Medical Plan or the Retiree Medical Reimbursement Plan is only 

available until the retirees reach age 65. 

Once eligible retirees reach age 65, the OPEB Plan allows for reimbursement to the retiree of the 

standard Medicare Part B insurance premium amounts, with automatic reimbursement increases 

when Medicare increases the standard premium amounts.  Employees retiring at or after age 55 

with 25 years of benefited service are also eligible for a prescription drug benefit which provides 

reimbursement up to a stipulated amount for 10 years beginning at the later of age 65 or 

retirement.  The stipulated reimbursement amount is fixed and is not subject to future increases 

under the current terms of the OPEB Plan. 

A separate financial report is not prepared for the OPEB Plan. 

In fiscal year 2018, the District adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 

75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pensions 

(OPEB) (GASB 75).   

In June 2018, the District established a trust that is consistent with the requirements of GASB 75.   

For the valuation dates of January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2020, with the trust established and 

given the District’s intention to fully fund the OPEB Plan, the total OPEB liabilities as of June 30, 

2019 and June 30, 2020 were discounted based on the expected long-term return on assets, which 

assumes that Plan assets will be invested in a diversified portfolio of stocks and bonds. 

The District has flexibility in determining the amount to contribute to the OPEB Plan each year.  In 

determining the amount of the annual contribution, the District intends to contribute, at a minimum, 

the actuarially determined contribution for each year.  The District has adopted a funding policy that 

is intended to result in the funding status of the Plan reaching 100 percent, as calculated under the 

provisions of GASB 75.   

As of the January 1, 2020 and January 1, 2019 measurement dates, the numbers of current and 

former employees who were eligible, or potentially eligible, for the OPEB Plan were as follows: 

2020 2019

Active 1,419 1,448

Retirees 517 504

Total participants 1,936 1,952
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Components of postemployment medical benefits cost for years ended June 30, were as follows: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Postemployment medical benefits cost

Service cost 1,473$               3,049$               

Interest 3,461 2,495

Expected return on plan assets (705) (219)

Administrative expenses 49 15

Recognition of deferred amounts (3,651) (4,354)

Total postemployment medical benefits cost 627$                  986$                   

 

Components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2020 were 

as follows: 

(in thousands) Deferred outflows Deferred (inflows)

of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 249$                       (231)$                      

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 293 (644)

Change of assumptions 7,811 (20,405)

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 1,769 -

Total 10,122$                  (21,280)$                 
 

Components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2019 were 

as follows: 

(in thousands) Deferred outflows Deferred (inflows)

of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 308$                       -$                            

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 391 -

Change of assumptions 2,401 (25,487)

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 1,686 -

Total 4,786$                    (25,487)$                 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources – postemployment medical 

benefits (OPEB) will be recognized in OPEB expense as indicated in the following tables: 

Inflows Outflows Total

2021 (5,278)$         1,627 (3,651)

2022 (5,278) 1,627 (3,651)

2023 (5,018) 1,628 (3,390)

2024 (4,949) 1,079 (3,870)

2025 (700) 908 208

Thereafter (57) 1,484 1,427

(21,280)$       8,353$           (12,927)$       

Total deferred inflows of resources - postemployment medical 

benefits (OPEB)

Amount of deferred (inflows) and outflows - postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) to be recognized in 

employee medical benefit expense for future years

 

The following table summarizes changes in the net postemployment medical benefit (OPEB) 

liability from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 and related ratios: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability

Service cost 1,473$               3,049$               

Interest 3,461 2,495

Difference between expected and actual experience (265) 368

Change of assumptions 6,880 (29,183)

Benefit payments (1,508) (1,569)

Net change in postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability 10,041 (24,840)

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (beginning of year) 45,412 70,252

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (end of year) 55,453 45,412

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 4,808 9,969

Net investment income 1,510 (270)

Benefit payments (1,508) (1,569)

Administrative expense (49) (15)

Other 1 (2)

Net change in fiduciary net position 4,762 8,113

Fiduciary net position (beginning of year) 8,113 -

Fiduciary net position (end of year) 12,875 8,113

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (end of year) 42,578$             37,299$             

Fiduciary net position as percent of liability 23.2% 17.9%

Covered payroll (OPEB) 177,841 165,710

23.9% 22.5%

1
Required disclosure; neither OPEB Plan contributions nor OPEB Plan benefits are based on covered payroll

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability as percent of 

covered payroll
1
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The following table summarizes the actuarial assumptions used to determine net OPEB liability and 

plan fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 (unless otherwise indicated, the 

same assumption was used for the valuations for both years): 

Valuation date January 1

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal, Level Percent of Pay

Amortization method Straight Line

Asset valuation method Fair Value

Economic assumptions (including 3% inflation)

Projected salary increases 3.00%

Discount rate January 1, 2020 - 7.00%

January 1, 2019 - 7.50%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality table for healthy participants January 1, 2020 - Pri-2012 tables and projected forward using

MP-2019 projection scale on a generational basis

January 1, 2019 - RP-2014 base table with two-dimensional  

projection scale BB projected generationally

Mortality table for disabled participants January 1, 2020 - Pri-2012 tables and projected forward using

MP-2019 projection scale on a generational basis

January 1, 2019 - RP-2014 Disabled retiree table                  

Other assumptions

Healthcare cost trend rate Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trends

Sensitivity of postretirement employee medical benefits liability at January 1, 2020

 to changes in the discount rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease (6.00%) $50,347,000

Current discount rate (7.00%) $42,578,000

1 percent increase (8.00%) $36,111,000

Sensitivity of postretirement employee medical benefits liability at January 1, 2020

 to changes in the health cost trend rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease $35,379,000

Current healthcare cost trend rate $42,578,000

1 percent increase $51,485,000

Sensitivity of postretirement employee medical benefits liability at January 1, 2019

 to changes in the discount rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease (6.50%) $43,485,000

Current discount rate (7.50%) $37,299,000

1 percent increase (8.50%) $32,173,000

Sensitivity of postretirement employee medical benefits liability at January 1, 2019

 to changes in the health cost trend rate, with no other changes -

1 percent decrease $31,898,000

Current healthcare cost trend rate $37,299,000

1 percent increase $43,871,000
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The fair value of the District’s OPEB investments measured as of January 1, 2020, and used for 

the purpose of the June 30, 2020 valuation, is reflected in the following table: 

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical Cash And Cash

Assets Equivalents Balance At

(in thousands) (Level 1) (Not Leveled) Valuation Date

Money market funds -$                       24$                    24$                    

Fixed income funds 5,572 - 5,572

Domestic equity funds 7,279 - 7,279

Total OPEB assets 12,851$             24$                    12,875$             
 

The fair value of the District’s OPEB investments measured as of January 1, 2019, and used for 

the purpose of the June 30, 2019 valuation, is reflected in the following table: 

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical Cash And Cash

Assets Equivalents Balance At

(in thousands) (Level 1) (Not Leveled) Valuation Date

Money market funds -$                       3,909$               3,909$               

Fixed income funds 1,791 - 1,791

Domestic equity funds 2,413 - 2,413

Total OPEB assets 4,204$               3,909$               8,113$               
 

 



Washington Township Health Care District 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

62 

Pension Plan and OPEB Plan Portfolios 

Long term (30-year) expected rate of returns are forecasted on a forward-looking basis by each asset 
class.  Then the total portfolio’s return is forecasted by combining returns of the asset classes based on 
the respective Plan’s asset allocation targets as well as the asset classes’ diversification benefits.  The 
forecasting method takes into consideration current market conditions, as well as potential future 
changes, such as yield shifts or valuation changes.  For example, equity asset class methodology 
includes two models that focus on variables including expected earnings growth, dividend income and 
expected inflation to triangulate on a reasonable expected return.  Fixed income models rely heavily on 
the existing yield environment but current projections assume a rising rate environment, given that 
prevailing yields are near historic lows.  The forecasting methodology combines insights of expected 
returns for the next immediate period and a long term equilibrium period, to maintain capital markets’ long 
term integrity.  

The expected rates of return are presented as geometric means.  The details are summarized in the 
following table: 

 

Long Term

Total portfolio 7.00 %             

Total portfolio asset allocation

Asset Class 

Expected 

Returns

U.S. Equity 30 %                7.80 %              

Non-U.S. Equity 25 %                8.40 %              

Core fixed income 30 %                4.80 %              

Opportunistic credit 10 %                7.00 %              

Real assets 5 %                  7.70 %              

Total 100 %              
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11. Insurance Plans 

The District’s hospital professional and general liability insurance, and the directors and officers 

liability deductible and insured programs, are purchased from BETA Healthcare Group (BETA).  

BETA was formed in 1979 for the purpose of operating an insured program with excess insurance 

coverage for certain hospital districts of the Association of California Hospital Districts (ACHD).  

Effective October 1, 1989, BETA became a separate joint powers authority, establishing itself as a 

public agency and distinct from ACHD.  BETA is managed by a board of 15 elected representatives 

(the BETA council).  The BETA council and its six committees meet quarterly to vote on all matters 

affecting the program.  A representative from the District occupies one seat on the BETA Council. 

The District is self-funded for its workers’ compensation claims and has been issued a Certificate of 

Consent to Self-Insure by the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations.  The District 

purchases excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage. 

Significant primary and excess insurance coverage types, limits and retention/deductible amounts 

are included below: 

Self-insured

Policy Retention/

Deductible

Coverage Limit Per Occurrence

General

All risk property 1,000,000,000$ 40,000$               

Boiler and machinery insurance 100,000,000 10,000

Hospital professional and general liability 40,000,000 25,000

Directors and officers liability 10,000,000 25,000

Excess workers’ compensation Statutory 1,250,000

Commercial crime 10,000,000 2,500

Automobile insurance 10,000,000 500

Cyber liability 2,000,000 100,000

Cyber excess, including notifications 10,000,000 -  

Settled claims have not exceeded the District’s policy limits in any year. 

The District has actuarial reviews performed annually on its self-insured claims programs, including 

professional and general liability, directors and officers coverage, workers’ compensation, and 

employee health, vision and dental benefits.  Estimated liabilities include amounts for incurred but 

not reported (IBNR) claims. 

12. Compensated Absences 

District employees earn paid leave at varying rates depending on length of service and job 

classification.  Employees can accumulate up to 640 hours of paid leave.  All accumulated unused 

leave in excess of the maximum accrual amount is paid at the employee’s anniversary date.  Upon 

separation, unused vested leave balances are paid in full.  As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the 

approximate liability for unpaid compensated absences was $16.4 million and $16.2 million, 

respectively. 
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13. Blended Component Unit Information 

Condensed financial statement information related to certain of the District’s blended component 

units for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows: 

(in thousands) Hospital

DEVCO, 

excluding 

WOSC WOSC WTMF Eliminations District

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Current assets 176,349$           6,125$               4,354$               7,388$               (1,788)$              192,428$           

Long-term investment and restricted funds 234,880 - - - - 234,880

Capital assets, net 684,274 10,394 2,360 757 - 697,785

Other assets 233,692 191,094 - - (407,021) 17,765

Total assets 1,329,195 207,613 6,714 8,145 (408,809) 1,142,858

Deferred outflows of resources 62,304 - 3,361 - - 65,665

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,391,499$        207,613$           10,075$             8,145$               (408,809)$          1,208,523$        

Liabilities

Current liabilities 157,053$           5,541$               2,970$               5,016$               (35)$                   170,545$           

Other non-current liabilities 639,114 221,678 225 181,163 (405,092) 637,088

Total liabilities 796,167 227,219 3,195 186,179 (405,127) 807,633

Deferred inflows of resources 63,497 - - - - 63,497

Net investment in capital assets 142,756 - - - - 142,756

Restricted - expendable 29,301 - - - - 29,301

Restricted for minority interest - - - - 3,666 3,666

Unrestricted 359,778 (19,606) 6,880 (178,034) (7,348) 161,670

Total net position 531,835 (19,606) 6,880 (178,034) (3,682) 337,393

Total liabilities, net position and deferred inflows of resources 1,391,499$        207,613$           10,075$             8,145$               (408,809)$          1,208,523$        

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues 454,925$           13,852$             16,314$             41,780$             (13,952)$            512,919$           

Operating expenses (417,077) (14,873) (15,901) (65,059) 14,545 (498,365)

Depreciation (48,544) (721) (414) (252) - (49,931)

Operating income (loss) (10,696) (1,742) (1) (23,531) 593 (35,377)

Non-operating revenues and expenses, net 33,925 180 323 788 (758) 34,458

23,229 (1,562) 322 (22,743) (165) (919)

Other, including minority interest 1,796 194 (1,594) - 800 1,196

Increase (decrease) in net position 25,025 (1,368) (1,272) (22,743) 635 277

Beginning of year 506,810 (18,238) 8,152 (155,291) (4,317) 337,116

End of year 531,835$           (19,606)$            6,880$               (178,034)$          (3,682)$              337,393$           

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net Cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 78,117$             392$                  2,813$               (1,191)$              1,753$               81,884$             

Noncapital financing activities 28,034 41 356 788 - 29,219

Capital and related financing activities (16,917) (1,479) (1,894) (436) (954) (21,680)

Investing activities (52,723) 799 - - (799) (52,723)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 36,511$             (247)$                 1,275$               (839)$                 -$                       36,700$             

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 32,100 908 1,410 917 - 35,335

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 68,611$             661$                  2,685$               78$                    -$                       72,035$             

Increase (decrease) in net position before minority interest and restricted funds
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Condensed financial statement information related to certain of the District’s blended component 

units for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

(in thousands) Hospital

DEVCO, 

excluding 

WOSC WOSC WTMF Eliminations District

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Current assets 148,758$           2,371$               3,267$               8,311$               (1,469)$              161,238$           

Long-term investment and restricted funds 181,568 - - - - 181,568

Capital assets, net 726,002 9,636 2,633 573 - 738,844

Other assets 199,715 172,357 - - (366,715) 5,357

Total assets 1,256,043 184,364 5,900 8,884 (368,184) 1,087,007

Deferred outflows of resources 63,460 - 4,033 - - 67,493

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,319,503$        184,364$           9,933$               8,884$               (368,184)$          1,154,500$        

Liabilities

Current liabilities 98,847$             3,170$               1,213$               1,779$               (28)$                   104,981$           

Other non-current liabilities 668,923 199,432 568 162,396 (363,839) 667,480

Total liabilities 767,770 202,602 1,781 164,175 (363,867) 772,461

Deferred inflows of resources 44,923 - - - 44,923

Net investment in capital assets 187,907 - - - 187,907

Restricted - expendable 29,276 - - - 29,276

Restricted for minority interest - - - - 4,301 4,301

Unrestricted 289,627 (18,238) 8,152 (155,291) (8,618) 115,632

Total net position 506,810 (18,238) 8,152 (155,291) (4,317) 337,116

Total liabilities, net position and deferred inflows of resources 1,319,503$        184,364$           9,933$               8,884$               (368,184)$          1,154,500$        

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues 472,907$           12,599$             17,195$             42,995$             (13,741)$            531,955$           

Operating expenses (422,207) (12,475) (15,460) (64,304) 14,079 (500,367)

Depreciation (42,527) (687) (410) (205) - (43,829)

Operating income (loss) 8,173 (563) 1,325 (21,514) 338 (12,241)

Non-operating revenues and expenses, net 7,548 589 (50) 15 (977) 7,125

Increase (decrease) in net position before minority interest and restricted funds 15,721 26 1,275 (21,499) (639) (5,116)

Other, including minority interest 561 3 (2,275) - 1,141 (570)

Increase (decrease) in net position 16,282 29 (1,000) (21,499) 502 (5,686)

Beginning of year 490,528 (18,267) 9,152 (133,792) (4,819) 342,802

End of year 506,810$           (18,238)$            8,152$               (155,291)$          (4,317)$              337,116$           

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net Cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 1,412$               1,406$               2,150$               755$                  1,441$               7,164$               

Noncapital financing activities (3,492) - - 15 - (3,477)

Capital and related financing activities (72,210) (1,009) (2,633) (170) (300) (76,322)

Investing activities 74,663 1,141 - - (1,141) 74,663

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 373$                  1,538$               (483)$                 600$                  -$                       2,028$               

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 31,727 (630) 1,893 317 - 33,307

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 32,100$             908$                  1,410$               917$                  -$                       35,335$              
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14. Commitments and Contingencies 

Lease Commitments 

DEVCO has operating leases for medical clinic facilities.  Rental expense under these leases for 

both fiscal years 2020 and 2019 was $3.1 million.  

Future minimum rental commitments for fiscal years ended subsequent to June 30, 2020 are as 

follows: 

(in thousands)

2021 3,314$               

2022 2,819

2023 2,012

2024 1,253

2025 641

Thereafter -

Total lease commitments 10,039$             
 

Litigation 

The District is involved in various claims and litigation, as both plaintiff and defendant, arising in the 

ordinary course of business.  In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, 

these matters will be resolved without material adverse effect on the District’s financial position. 

Regulatory Environment 

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local 

governments.  These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such 

as licensure, accreditation, and government health care program participation requirements, 

reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medi-Cal fraud and abuse.  Recently, 

government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning 

possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers.  Violations 

of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs 

together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for 

patient services previously billed.  While no regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with 

such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as 

regulatory actions unknown or not asserted at this time.        

15. The CARES Act  

In response to the disruptions that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused in operations for health 

care organizations, on March 27, 2020 the Federal Government passed the CARES Act which 

made funds available to the District through various provisions of the legislation. Through June 30, 

2020, the District received and recognized CARES Act provider relief funding of $29.9 million, as 

federal grant revenue on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. This 

amount included $19.4 million in funding attributable to a targeted distribution for safety net 

hospitals. The District recognized revenue related to CARES Act provider relief funding based on 

information contained in laws and regulations governing the funding, as well as interpretations 

issued by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), that were publicly available at 

June 30, 2020.  
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The District received $59.0 million in advanced payments from the Centers for Medicare and 

Medicaid Services (CMS) Accelerated and Advanced Payments Program reported as due to third 

party payors, on the statement of net position.  These advance payments are expected to be repaid 

within the next twelve months, based on current legislation. In addition, WOSC received a $1.6 

million Paycheck Protection Program loan for small business reported as due to third party payors, 

on the statement of net position since this loan is expected to be forgiven under current legislation. 

Furthermore, the CARES Act allowed employers to defer the deposits and payments of the 

employer’s share of the Social Security taxes. As of June 30, 2020, $0.9 million was deferred and 

reported as accrued (payroll related) liabilities on the statement of net position for the District and 

will be paid over the next two years based on current legislation. 

16. Subsequent Events 

In August 2020, the District received additional CARES Act provider relief funding of $1.3 million. 

 

In September 2020, HHS issued new reporting requirements for CARES Act provider relief 

funding.   The new requirements stated that the District must first identify healthcare related 

expenses attributable to coronavirus that another source had not reimbursed. If those expenses did 

not exceed the funding received, the District needed to demonstrate that the remaining provider 

relief funding was used for a negative change in calendar year 2020 patient care operating income 

compared to calendar year 2019. HHS would then be entitled to recoup amounts in excess of the 

negative change in patient care operating income reported net of healthcare related expenses.  

In October 2020, based on concerns raised by providers and others regarding the reporting 

requirements issued in September, HHS amended the reporting requirements again.  The October 

amendment allows increased flexibility in how providers can apply provider relief funding toward 

lost revenues attributable to coronavirus.  After reimbursing healthcare-related expenses 

attributable to coronavirus that were unreimbursed by other sources, providers may now use 

remaining provider relief funding to cover any lost revenue, measured as a negative change in 

year-over-year actual revenue from patient care related sources. 

Due to the continuing evolution of the reporting requirements there is at least a reasonable 

possibility that amounts recorded under CARES Act provider relief funding recognized by the 

District may change in future periods. 
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Defined Benefit Retirement Plan 

The District’s actuarially determined contribution and actual contributions, for this plan year and the nine 

plan years prior, are presented in the following table: 

Actuarially Contribution Covered Contributions

Determined Actual Excess Payroll as % of Covered

(in thousands) Contribution Contribution (Deficiency) (Pension) Payroll

Fiscal Year Ended

2010 12,594$          -$                    (12,594)$         121,053$        0.00%

2011 15,683 - (15,683) 131,700 0.00%

2012 18,344 - (18,344) 142,590 0.00%

2013 19,800 - (19,800) 145,324 0.00%

2014 18,500 134,026
1

115,526 144,445 92.79%

2015 18,000 22,700 4,700 136,999 16.57%

2016 17,700 22,100 4,400 142,319 15.53%

2017 22,300 22,000 (300) 146,438 15.02%

2018 23,100 22,300 (800) 168,165 13.26%

2019 23,100 28,875 5,775 173,692 16.62%

2020 23,100 23,100 - 186,174 12.41%

212,221$        275,101$        62,880$          
 

1
 For the years 2010 to 2013, the District Board set aside the following amounts in accounts designated 

for future pension funding, all of which were included in the 2014 Actual Contribution amount of 
$134,026,000: 

(in thousands)

2010 22,000$          

2011 22,000

2012 19,000

2013 21,800

Total pension funding for years 2010 to 2013 included in 2014 actual contribution 84,800$          
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The following table summarizes changes in net pension liability from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2020: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Total pension liability

Service cost 9,075$           8,190$           6,500$           6,494$           5,669$           5,434$           5,456$           6,580$           

Interest 27,395 26,693 24,436 24,263 23,657 21,585 20,223 19,283

Difference between expected and actual experience 16,421 (8,586) 15,019 8,244 (13,656) 578 4,395 (5,173)

Change in assumptions (703) - - - - 14,522 362 2,148

Benefit payments (18,146) (16,330) (15,043) (30,410) (13,760) (13,762) (11,483) (9,298)

Net change in total pension liability 34,042 9,967 30,912 8,591 1,910 28,357 18,953 13,540

Total pension liability (beginning of year) 375,085 365,118 334,206 325,615 323,705 295,348 276,395 262,855

Total pension liability (end of year) (a) 409,127 375,085 365,118 334,206 325,615 323,705 295,348 276,395

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 23,100 23,100 22,300 22,000 27,100 36,200 115,526 -

Employee contributions 1,655 1,235 980 732 374 139 - -

Net investment income 59,371 (18,935) 42,293 7,817 1,740 10,805 19,342 12,619

Benefit payments (18,146) (16,330) (15,043) (30,410) (13,760) (13,762) (11,483) (9,298)

Administrative expense (226) (224) (252) (216) (64) (65) (62) (69)

Other - - (1) (126) - - - -

Net change in fiduciary net position 65,754 (11,154) 50,277 (203) 15,390 33,317 123,323 3,252

Plan fiduciary net position (beginning of year) 311,575 322,729 272,452 272,655 257,265 223,948 100,625 97,373

Plan fiduciary net position (end of year) (b) 377,329 311,575 322,729 272,452 272,655 257,265 223,948 100,625

Net pension liability (end of year) (a) - (b) 31,798$         63,510$         42,389$         61,754$         52,960$         66,440$         71,400$         175,770$       

Plan fiduciary net position as percent of total

 pension liability 92.2 %           
1

83.1 %           88.4 %           81.5 %           83.7 %           79.5 %           
1

75.8 %           
1

36.4 %           

Covered payroll (pension) 186,174 173,692 168,165 146,438 142,319 136,999 144,445 145,324

Net pension liability as percent of covered payroll 17.1 %           
2

36.6 %           25.2 %           42.2 %           37.2 %           48.5 %           
2

49.4 %           
2

121.0 %         

Deferred outflows of resources

Employer contributions after measurement date 5,775$           5,775$           -$                  -$                  -$                  5,000$           18,500$         -$                  
1

Fiduciary net position as percent of liability

 including deferred outflows of resources 93.6 %           84.6 %           88.4 %           81.5 %           83.7 %           81.0 %           82.1 %           36.4 %           
2

Net pension liability as percent of covered

 payroll including deferred outflows of resources 14.0 %           33.2 %           25.2 %           42.2 %           37.2 %           44.8 %           36.6 %           121.0 %          

The following table summarizes the significant actuarial assumptions used to determine net pension 

liability and plan fiduciary net position as of June 30 for the years presented (unless otherwise indicated, 

the same assumption was used for the valuations for all years): 

Discount rate January 1, 2020 7.00%

January 1, 2013 - 2019 7.50%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality table for healthy participants January 1, 2020 Pri-2012 mortality tables projected forward generationally

  using MP-2019 projection scale

January 1, 2015 - 2019 RP-2014 base table with two-dimensional projection

  scale BB projected generationally

January 1, 2013 - 2014 Internal Revenue Code Section 430(h)(3)(A) using

  static tables and separate mortality rates

for annuitants and non-annuitants

Mortality table for disabled participants January 1, 2020 Pri-2012 disabled mortality tables projected forward

  generationally using MP-2019 projection scale

January 1, 2015 - 2019 RP-2014 Disabled retiree table                  

January 1, 2013 - 2014 RP-2000 Disabled mortality tables for females and males
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Defined Benefit Post-Employment Medical Plan (OPEB) 

The following table summarizes contributions to the OPEB Plan from July 1, 2016 (year of GASB 75 

adoption) to June 30, 2020: 

Actuarially Contribution Covered Contributions

Determined Actual Excess Payroll
 1

as % of Covered

(in thousands) Contribution Contribution (Deficiency) (OPEB) Payroll 
1

Fiscal Year Ended

2017 5,099$            1,455$            (3,644)$           146,438$        0.99%

2018 5,451 5,995 544 168,165 3.56%

2019 6,200 6,400 200 165,710 * 3.86% *

2020 7,400 4,891 (2,509) 177,841 2.75%

24,150$          18,741$          (5,409)$           

1
Required disclosure; neither OPEB Plan contributions nor OPEB Plan benefits are based on covered payroll

* These figures, previously presented in the 2019 financial statements, have been revised to present

 corrected information.  

The following table summarizes changes in the net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability 

from July 1, 2016 (year of GASB 75 adoption) to June 30, 2020, and related ratios: 

(in thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability

Service cost 1,473$               3,049$               2,948$               3,007$               

Interest 3,461 2,495 2,457 2,260

Difference between expected and actual experience (265) 368 - -

Change of assumptions 6,880 (29,183) 3,541 (2,045)

Benefit payments (1,508) (1,569) (1,494) (1,412)

Net change in postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability 10,041 (24,840) 7,452 1,810

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (beginning of year) 45,412 70,252 62,800 60,990

Total postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (end of year) 55,453 45,412 70,252 62,800

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 4,808 9,969 1,494 1,412

Net investment income 1,510 (270) - -

Benefit payments (1,508) (1,569) (1,494) (1,412)

Administrative expense (49) (15) - -

Other 1 (2) - -

Net change in fiduciary net position 4,762 8,113 - -

Fiduciary net position (beginning of year) 8,113 - -

Fiduciary net position (end of year) 12,875 8,113 - -

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability (end of year) 42,578$             37,299$             70,252$             62,800$             

Fiduciary net position as percent of liability 23.2%
1

17.9%
1

0.0%
1

0.0%

Covered employee payroll (OPEB) 177,841 165,710 * 168,165 146,438

23.9%
2

22.5%
2 *

41.8%
2

42.9%

Deferred outflows of resources

Employer contributions after measurement date 1,769$               1,686$               4,500$               -$                       
1

Fiduciary net position as percent of liability

 including deferred outflows of resources 26.4 %                21.6 %                6.4 %                  0.0 %                  
2

Net OPEB liability as percent of covered

 payroll including deferred outflows of resources 22.9 %                21.5 %                39.1 %                42.9 %                

3

 benefits are based on covered payroll

* These figures, previously presented in the 2019 financial statements, have been revised to present

 corrected information.

Net postemployment medical benefits (OPEB) liability as percent of 

covered payroll
3

Required disclosure; neither OPEB Plan contributions nor OPEB Plan 
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The following table summarizes the significant actuarial assumptions used to determine net OPEB liability 

and plan fiduciary net position as of June 30 for the years presented (unless otherwise indicated, the 

same assumption was used for the valuations for all years): 

Discount rate January 1, 2020 - 7.00%

January 1, 2019 - 7.50%

January 1, 2018 - 3.44%

January 1, 2017 - 3.78%

January 1, 2016 - 3.57%

Other assumptions

Healthcare cost trend rate Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trends

 



Washington Hospital Healthcare System 
Community Health Needs Assessment 

2020 Health Improvement Plan 
 
Washington Hospital Healthcare System is a district hospital that opened in 1958. It is governed by an 
elected Board of Directors made up of five members. Washington Hospital serves the residents of 
Fremont, Newark, Union City, unincorporated Sunol, and a small portion of Hayward. This primary 
service area, also known as the Washington Township Health Care District, encompasses approximately 
124 square miles of Southern Alameda County. The area’s population is about 365,000, which 
represents nearly 21.8 percent of the county. 
 
Washington Hospital Healthcare System: Service Area Map 

 
 
 
MISSION STATEMENT  
Our mission is to meet the healthcare needs of local residents through medical services, education, and 
research. Washington Township Health Care District is committed to assuming the leadership role in 
improving and maintaining the health status of the residents by: 

• Identifying and assessing community healthcare needs. 
• Developing mechanisms to respond to the identified need within the financial capabilities of the 

District. 
• Committing to a culture of patient safety and accountability. 
• Adopting identified best practices. 
• Providing access to high quality, cost-effective health services through an integrated delivery 

system. 
• Partnering with a diverse medical staff, academic medical centers, and other providers to meet 

the healthcare needs of District residents. 
• Providing appropriate employee, professional, and community educational resources to 

enhance patient care and health promotion throughout the District. 



 
VISION 
To support the fulfillment of the mission, the District’s strategic vision is to be the regional medical 
center of choice in Southern Alameda County, offering quality services that span the full range of care 
within the available financial resources. 
 
VALUES STATEMENT 
Our organizational values stem directly from the origins of the Hospital District in 1948. The District was 
formed to provide access to patient care services for the residents of the Township, at a time when 
people had to leave their community and travel significant distances to find hospital care. The District 
serves its community by providing high quality, affordable, and convenient care. We are committed not 
only in law, but in spirit, to local accountability. 
 
Healthcare is an intensely personal service. Underlying all that we offer is the recognition that 
healthcare is not a commodity. Our essential purpose is to improve the human condition. Our reason for 
being begins and ends with our patients and our community, and we are committed to a patient-first 
ethic. To our patients we owe comfort, compassion and, whenever possible, a cure. Our efforts are 
focused not just on individuals and families, but also on the overall health of the community. 
 
It is our obligation to provide responsible stewardship of our resources, acting in all areas of our 
healthcare system with integrity, professionalism, and respect for a patient’s right to choice. 
To our fellow employees, volunteers, and members of our medical staff we owe a commitment to 
perform all of our responsibilities with loyalty, perseverance, self-discipline, and dependability. We 
achieve these goals through our organizational commitment to innovation, process improvements, and 
pursuit of excellence. 
 
COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMS 
Each year, Washington Hospital provides a host of innovative and impactful community benefit 
programs and services to underserved and underinsured residents. The hospital’s community benefit 
programs and activities are designed to: 

• Meet the specific healthcare needs of targeted populations 
• Expand availability of healthcare to those who need it most 
• Provide health information and education resources 
• Teach participants about healthy lifestyles and the importance of staying active and eating 

nutritiously. 
 
2019/2020 COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
Washington Hospital conducted the Community Health Needs Assessment in the summer of 2019 in 
collaboration with local hospitals serving southern Alameda County -- Kaiser Foundation Hospitals 
Fremont and San Leandro, St. Rose Hospital, Sutter Health Eden Medical Center and UCSF Benioff 
Children’s Hospital Oakland.  
 
The hospitals began the CHNA cycle with the goal to collectively gather community feedback, 
understand existing data about health status, and prioritize local health needs. Community input was 
obtained through key informant interviews with local health experts and through focus groups 
comprised of community leaders, residents, and representatives. The assessment also analyzed 
qualitative data obtained from the Alameda County Public Health Department, the U.S. Census Bureau, 
and other publicly available sources 



 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE 2019/2020 CHNA  
As a result of the 2019/2020 Community Health Needs Assessment, Washington Hospital identified key 
community health needs to address based on the prevalence and the severity of the health need.  
 
The 2019/2020 CHNA identified the following key community health needs: 
 

• Behavioral Health 
• Housing and Homelessness 
• Healthy Eating/Active Living 
• Healthcare Access and Delivery 
• Social Determinants of Health 
• Diabetes, Heart Disease, Hypertension, and Stroke 
• Respiratory Health 

 
In follow up to this assessment, Washington Hospital will develop a three-year Health Improvement Plan 
that addresses each of these health needs.  Hospital resources will be deployed to mitigate the impact 
of these health needs and bring education, prevention, and education to the most disproportionately 
impacted populations throughout the District.   
 

1. Behavioral Health. Behavioral health, including mental health and substance use, is a high 
priority for community members interviewed for the assessment. Depression and stress were 
the most common issues raised, and trauma and adverse childhood experiences were identified 
as drivers of behavioral health problems. The emergency department (ED) visit rates for severe 
mental illness in Newark and unincorporated Sunol are significantly higher than the Alameda 
County rate. In Union City, the rate of ED visits for self-injury exceeds the county rate. The 
suicide rates in Fremont and Newark are not higher than the county benchmark, but they are 
increasing. 

 
Initiatives  
 

• Continue collaborating with UCSF Adolescent Behavioral Health Services to develop an 
outpatient mental health clinic for youth, providing ongoing care for teens exhibiting 
mental health issues. 

• Partner with Medical Explorers Post 539, a youth program, to develop a webpage 
focusing on adolescent mental health hosted on the Washington Hospital website.  

• Expand adult outpatient and inpatient behavioral health services. A psychiatrist 
affiliated with Washington Township Medical Foundation will continue providing an 
inpatient psychiatric consultation service.  

• Promote mental health education and awareness through Washington Hospital’s Health 
and Wellness programming.  

 
2. Housing and Homelessness. Maintaining safe and healthy housing also ranked high as a 

community priority. The physical condition of a home, its neighborhood, and the cost of rent or 
mortgage are strongly associated with the health, well-being, educational achievement, and 
economic success of residents.  In addition, following a countywide trend, the number of people 
experiencing homelessness in Fremont, Newark, and Union City grew at an alarming rate in 



2019. People experiencing homelessness have been shown to have more healthcare issues, are 
at greater rate of preventable illnesses, require longer hospital stays, and ultimately face a 
greater risk of premature death. 
 

 
Initiatives  
 

• Strengthen the partnership with the Fremont Police Department and Fremont Human 
Services Department on the Mobile Evaluation Team (MET) to provide a more 
comprehensive level of service to community members, particularly the homeless 
population. 

• Continue participating on the City of Fremont Homeless Task Force. The Task Force 
tracks community concerns, focuses efforts on the greater needs of the community, 
facilitates collaboration of homeless services and resources throughout the area.  

3. Healthy Eating/Active Living. This health need covers concerns about obesity, nutrition, diet, 
and fitness. Nutrition and exercise are important aspects of a healthy lifestyle. The benefits of a 
healthy diet include preventing high cholesterol and high blood pressure, reducing the risk of 
developing cancer and diabetes, and helping to reduce the risk of obesity. Yet despite the well-
known benefits, most people do not follow recommended healthy food and exercise guidelines.  
 
For many District residents, a poor diet and lack of regular exercise can result in adult and 
childhood obesity, a serious and costly health concern that is one of the leading causes of 
preventable death. Youth in Union City fare significantly worse in meeting aerobic capacity 
standards than their peers in Alameda County overall. Based on measures of body composition, 
youth in Newark and Union City are more likely to be at health risk than their peers countywide. 

 
Initiatives  

• Explore a collaboration with East Bay Regional Park District to participate in Park 
Prescriptions: Stay Healthy in Nature Every day (SHINE) program. SHINE is a low-cost 
recreational program promoting the health benefits of nature including outdoor 
physical activity. Through SHINE, care providers may prescribe time in nature for 
children and adults with chronic illnesses. 

• Explore Meal Prescription models for care providers to write a “prescription” for their 
patients to receive medically tailored meals that align with their particular health 
conditions. 

• Raise community awareness of the importance of proper nutrition, healing foods, and 
healthy lifestyles through Washington Hospital’s Health and Wellness programming. 

 
4. Healthcare Access and Delivery. Access to comprehensive healthcare is important to everyone’s 

health and quality of life. Access to care frequently rests upon insurance coverage and an 
adequate number of primary and specialty care providers. Likewise, delivery of care can be 
impacted by quality, transparency, timeliness, and cultural competence. These barriers can lead 
to unmet health needs, delays in receiving appropriate care, and an inability to attain preventive 
services. Statistics reveal that close to one in five people speak limited English across our district.   
 
 



 
Initiatives  
 

• Explore MediCal/Blue Shield options with Alameda County Social Services to broaden 
access to health care for MediCal members.  

• Explore pricing options with Canopy Health Plan and United Health to establish some 
reduced priced plan options for low-income or uninsured community members. 

5. Social Determinants of Health. The CHNA revealed that community members understand that 
the health of a population is impacted by social factors well beyond the provision of health care.  
Many social and economic factors contribute to a community’s health, including access to 
quality education and job opportunities, public safety, and mass transit. Educational attainment, 
employment rates, and household income are key indicators that show the economic vitality of 
an area and the buying power of individuals, including their ability to afford basic needs such as 
housing and healthcare. A wide variety of experts and community members expressed concerns 
that local jobs often do not offer sufficient wages to afford the high cost of living in the Bay 
Area. 

 
Initiatives  
 

• Continue partnering with local Chamber of Commerce and other business-focused 
organizations to promote and foster business growth to expand employment 
opportunities.  

• Explore career exploration programs for college students to learn about potential health 
care careers and educational path to support career development in these fields. 

 
6. Diabetes, Heart Disease, Hypertension, and Stroke are among the leading causes of death 

nationwide. Although some risk factors for heart disease and stroke are not controllable (age, 
race/ethnicity, gender), many risk factors can be controlled (high blood pressure, high 
cholesterol, obesity, excessive alcohol consumption, smoking, an unhealthy diet, lack of physical 
activity). Addressing risk factors early in life can help to prevent chronic diseases later in life. 
Experts and community members highlighted the need for more community health education to 
boost healthy living choices that would reduce the incidence of obesity, diabetes, and other 
chronic diseases. The rates of diabetes hospitalizations in Newark and Union City surpass 
Alameda County’s rates. Newark also has significantly higher rates of ED visits for diabetes and 
stroke. Hypertension is an issue in Union City (ED visits) and unincorporated Sunol 
(hospitalizations). Union City and unincorporated Sunol residents are more commonly 
hospitalized for heart disease than their peers countywide. 

 
Initiatives  
 

• Improve and increase community access to the diabetes self-management education 
program.  

• Explore improvement practices to reduce readmission rates of diabetic patients through 
inpatient education, specialty care, better discharge instructions, coordination of care, 
and post-discharge support. 



• Assess the existing standardized stroke protocol, Code Neuro, to further integrate 
departments and streamline patient flow. Expediting imaging and laboratory studies 
would improve the identification and treatment of stroke patients.   

• Increase community awareness about stroke symptoms and the importance of calling 
911 when someone is suspected of having a stroke.  

• Explore achieving Joint Commission Thrombectomy Capable Stroke  
Center (TSC) certification. This advanced certification program is designed for hospitals 
that provide endovascular procedures and post-procedural care. 

• Establish a Structural Heart Clinic to assess patients with Aortic Stenosis and other 
valvular disorders 

• Provide patient education and improve awareness of critical aortic stenosis and current 
treatment options 

• Establish a TAVR (Transcatheter Aortic Valve Replacement) program to offer patients 
and their families the convenience of being treated locally at WHHS 

• Participate in the Alameda County Stroke study to explore the effectiveness of self- 
monitoring blood pressure and behavioral changes for a healthy lifestyle to prevent a 
stroke 

7. Respiratory Health. Focus group participants emphasized the prevalence of respiratory ailments 
in their communities, which they thought might be caused by environmental factors. Asthma, 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disorder (COPD), and pneumonia—all chronic conditions—are 
among the most common respiratory disorders experienced by District residents. While 
Alameda County’s air quality is better than the state’s as a whole, Fremont’s childhood asthma 
prevalence rate is slightly worse than the county benchmark, and Union City’s rate nearly as 
high. COPD emergency department (ED) visits and asthma hospitalizations in Newark and Union 
City are significantly worse than the county’s rates. 

 
Initiatives  
 

• Explore partnering with Alameda County Public Health Department’s Asthma Start program 
to work with families of children with asthma by providing in-home case management 
services. Services include asthma education, identification of asthma triggers, prevention of 
asthma attacks, and understanding asthma medication(s).  

• Increase community awareness of the benefits of respiratory testing and pulmonary 
rehabilitation through Washington Hospital’s Health and Wellness programming.  

 
8. Cancer is the second leading cause of death in the United States, after heart disease. High-

quality screening can serve to reduce cancer rates; however, complex factors contribute to 
disparities in cancer incidence and death rates between different ethnic and socioeconomic 
groups.  

Statistically, Alameda County generally fares well with respect to cancer. Nearly all rates of 
incidence or death from various types of cancer meet or beat the state’s benchmarks.  



For this reason, cancer was not identified as a health need in the 2020 Community Health Needs 
Assessment. However, it remains a community health concern that Washington Hospital is 
committed to addressing with a wide array of cutting-edge treatments and technologies 
 
Initiative  

• Introduce a state-of-the-art linear accelerator in the Radiation Oncology Center that 
precisely targets tumor areas while reducing the most common side effects associated 
with radiation treatment. 

• Raise awareness of lung cancer screenings through low-dose computed tomography 
(LDCT) scans. LDCT screenings are an opportunity to engage patients about the risks of 
lung cancer, the danger of smoking, and the benefits of early detection.  

• Implement a Cancer Survivorship Care Program for the prevention of new and recurrent 
cancers and other late effects.  The service will provide an assessment of late 
psychosocial and physical effects built on the coordination of care between care 
providers and specialists 

• Promote awareness of cancer prevention, early detection and treatment resources 
available within the District through Washington Hospital’s Health and Wellness 
programming. 

 



 
 

 

October 23, 2020 

To:  Board of Directors 

From: Chris Henry, Chief Financial Officer 

RE:  Approval of Commercial Guaranty and Governmental Certificate in connection with a 

financing of tenant improvements for ambulatory surgery center 

In November 2019 the Washington Township Hospital Development Corporation (“DEVCO”) 

agreed to participate in the ownership and operation of an ambulatory surgery center (“ASC”) at 

350 Marine Parkway in Redwood City, California. The ASC is referred to as the “Peninsula Surgery 

Center.” The purpose of opening the ASC in Redwood City is to expand the operation of the 

Institute for Joint Restoration and Research (“IJRR”) and provide easier access for outpatients. 

The IJRR opened its doors in 2012 as an inpatient service focused on providing total knee and hip 

replacements. Given the quality of the program, the IJRR has attracted patients beyond the normal 

service area of the District. Recently, the federal government has taken steps to require more of 

these procedures to be conducted on an outpatient basis by refusing to pay for these procedures 

on an inpatient basis. The IJRR’s outpatient procedures are currently being performed at 

Washington Hospital and the Washington Outpatient Surgery Center (“WOSC”), in which DEVCO 

owns a 51% interest. However, patients are, in general, less willing to travel the same distance to 

receive outpatient surgery as compared to inpatient surgery, which has caused the IJRR to explore 

opportunities to expand its reach by opening a facility on the peninsula to serve its traditional 

patient base that lives on that side of the Bay. To maintain its competitiveness in the current 

market, the IJRR must expand the reach of its outpatient services. 

The Peninsula Surgery Center is operated under the umbrella of two limited liability companies. 

One limited liability company would operate the surgery center on a day-to-day basis (the 

“Operating Company”). This entity is owned 51% by a holding company (the “Holding Company”) 

and 49% by physician investors. This follows the model for the WOSC, which is a limited liability 

company, of which DEVCO owns 51% and qualified physician investors own the remaining 49%. 

The second limited liability company would be the Holding Company, of which DEVCO would own 

80%, WOSC would own 15%, and a qualified physician investor would own 5%. Under this 

arrangement, DEVCO will control both the Holding Company and Operating Company. 

The construction of the tenant improvements is underway. When completed, sometime in the next 

two months, the ambulatory surgery center will include two operating rooms and related facilities. 

The Operating Company has obtained financing from Fremont Bank to cover the cost of the 

Tenant Improvements in the amount of $9,400,000.   As the Operating Company is a new entity, 

Fremont Bank requires that the loan be guaranteed by the District, the Holding Company and the 

current physician investor.    



 
 

 

Tonight, we are asking the Board to approve the execution of the document entitled “Governmental 

Certificate” by the Board Secretary, Dr. Bernard Stewart. The Governmental Certificate represents 

that the District is a governmental entity and that the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice 

President and Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Financial Officer are authorized to enter into 

agreements related to the Commercial Guaranty.    

We are also asking the Board to approve the execution of the Commercial Guaranty by Chief 

Executive Officer, the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, and the Chief 

Financial Officer. 

The Operating Company will be responsible for loan payments. It is anticipated that the cashflow 

from the ASC will fully fund the loan payments.   
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I.  LEGISLATION  

 
Federal and Local Economic Update 
The national economic outlook continues to remain unfavorable, however, some economic 
indicators continue to improve compared to previous months, although national employment 
growth has slowed recently. The global COVID-19 pandemic continues to put a significant 
strain on financial, commercial, and services sectors across all segments of the national and 
global economies.  
 
The Bureau of Labor Statistics job report showed the U.S. economy added 661,000 jobs in 
September, as the unemployment rate declined to 7.9% from 8.4% in the previous month as 
states continue to slowly reopen portions of their economies. However, the September jobs 
report came in below the anticipated 850,000 new jobs, suggesting that the labor markets 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic may be slowing amid fading government relief 
money and gradually growing COVID-19 caseloads in certain states. Claims for U.S. jobless 
benefits continue to come in at relatively high levels, as 840,000 Americans filed for 
unemployment last week. Although some economic indicators have begun to show 
improvement over the last several months as states try to open their economies, the incidence 
of COVID-19 in those states has shown an increase over the last month, which is limiting 
the pace at which certain sectors of the economy can safely re-open.   
 
The California economy showed an increase in jobs in August (state unemployment data lags 
national data by a month), as the economy added 101,900 jobs and the state’s unemployment 
rate declined to 11.4%, down from an unemployment rate of 13.3% in July. August was the 
first month since March, when the pandemic started, that joblessness was below the 12.3% 
mark California reached in 2010 during the height of layoffs spurred by the Great Recession. 
Like the national economy, the impact from the global pandemic is significant for the state’s 
economy, and is expected to continue over the coming months, if not into mid-2021.    
 
Locally, the District’s unemployment rate declined slightly in August (local unemployment 
data lags national data by a month) to 8.2%, down from 10.2% in the previous month. 
Approximately 14,750 District residents in the labor force are unemployed. 
 
Analysis of all of the economic measures included above is ongoing and carefully monitored 
for potential impacts to hospitals and opportunities for Washington to contribute expertise 
and advocacy through our elected officials.  
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State and Federal Legislative Update 
 
CA Legislature 
The Governor had until the end of September to sign or veto any bills approved by the 
Legislature. The next Legislative session will resume on January 4, 2021.  
 
Some of the key legislation that was signed by the Governor include:  
 
AB 890 (Wood) Nurse Practitioners: Scope of Practice  
This bill was signed by the Governor, and expands the scope of practice for nurse 
practitioners. This bill requires the Board of Registered Nursing (BRN) to establish a Nurse 
Practitioner Advisory Committee to advise and make recommendations to the board on all 
matters relating to nurse practitioners (NPs), and authorizes an NP to provide specified 
services in specified settings, without standardized procedures, if the NP meets additional 
education, examination, and training requirements and requires the BRN and the Department 
of Consumer Affairs to identify, or develop an examination that tests for independent practice 
competency. 

 
SB 275 (Pan) Health Care and Essential Workers Protection Act: Personal Protective 
Equipment 
This bill was signed by the Governor. Current law establishes the State Department of Public 
Health to implement various programs throughout the state relating to public health, 
including licensing and regulating health facilities and control of infectious diseases. This 
bill, the Health Care and Essential Workers Protection Act, would require the State 
Department of Public Health to establish a personal protective equipment (PPE) stockpile to 
ensure an adequate supply of PPE for health care workers and essential workers, and would 
require the stockpile to be at least sufficient for a 45-day pandemic, or other health 
emergency. The bill would require the department to establish guidelines for the procurement 
of the PPE stockpile, taking into account, among other things, the amount of each type of 
PPE that would be required for all health care workers and essential workers in the state 
during the pandemic or other health emergency, which would represent the amount of PPE 
to be maintained in the stockpile. The bill provides that beginning on January 1, 2023, or 365 
days after regulations setting health care employer inventory are adopted, whichever is later, 
health care employers must have an inventory of PPE sufficient for at least 45 days of surge 
consumption. The bill also includes language that a health care employer who violates the 
requirement to maintain an inventory of PPE is subject to a civil penalty of up to $25,000 for 
each violation. 
 
 
AB 2537 (Rodriguez) Personal Protective Equipment: Health Care Employees 
This bill was signed by the Governor. Existing law requires an employer to furnish 
employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for the employees and to 
establish, implement, and maintain an effective injury prevention program. Regulations 
enacted by the Department of Industrial Relations regulate the nature and use of personal 
protective equipment and regulate practices in health care facilities connected with aerosol 
transmissible diseases. This bill would require public and private employers of workers in a 
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general acute care hospital to supply those employees who provide direct patient care or 
provide services that directly support personal care with the personal protective equipment 
necessary to comply with the regulations. The bill would also require an employer to ensure 
that the employees use the personal protective equipment supplied to them. The bill would 
further require that an employer in this context, beginning April 1, 2021, maintain a supply 
of specified equipment in an amount equal to 3 months of normal consumption. The bill 
would require an employer to provide an inventory of its stockpile and a copy of its written 
procedures to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health upon request. The bill would 
authorize the assessment of a civil penalty of up to $25,000 for each violation to maintain 
the required stockpile. 

 
Federal Legislature 
The President and federal legislature continue to assess legislation aimed at addressing the 
economic impacts of COVID-19. Although the House passed the HEROES Act in May, the 
Senate has not yet taken action on this bill. Both chambers continue negotiations on the bill, 
with the key discussion point continuing to be the level of economic support and the cost 
associated with the bill.  
 

II.     FOUNDATION 
 

Top Hat 
The Foundation hosted Top Hat XXXIV as a virtual event on October 10, 2020 at 6:00 p.m., 
with proceeds designated to support the COVID-19 Response Fund.  Co-chairs for this year’s 
gala were Renee Fernandez-Lovely, Nicole Dutra, Kadeer Halimi, M.D., Brenda Brennan, 
and Jimmy Chang.  Almost 300 viewers tuned in to watch the event on YouTube and 
Facebook Live.  Expenses for the event are still being processed, but we expect to receive 
over $200,000 in revenue before expenses. 
 
COVID-19 Emergency Response Fund 
The Foundation has received a number or large monetary donations for the COVID-19 relief 
fund totaling almost $400,000.  The Foundation has set a goal to raise $1 million for the 
COVID-19 Response Fund by the end of 2020. 
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Washington Township Hospital 

Development Corporation 

Summary Income Statement

August 2020

C u r r e n t   M o n t h Y e a r  - T o  - D a t e

Favorable/(Unfavorable) Favorable/(Unfavorable)

% %

Actual Budget Variance Variance Actual Budget Variance Variance

2,369 2,522 (153) (6.1%) (1)   Visits 4,730 4,865 (135) (2.8%)

196 240 (44) (18.3%) (2)   Treatments & Procedures 349 488 (139) (28.5%)

2,565 2,762 (197) (7.1%) (3) Total 5,079 5,353 (274) (5.1%)

     Gross Revenue

3,066,387 3,807,344 (740,957) (19.5%) (4)      Patient Revenue 6,427,869 7,421,159 (993,290) (13.4%)

939,564 988,616 (49,052) (5.0%) (5)      Other Revenue 1,910,756 1,986,992 (76,236) (3.8%)

4,005,951 4,795,960 (790,009) (16.5%) (6)   Total Gross Revenue 8,338,625 9,408,151 (1,069,526) (11.4%)

      Deductions

1,657,574 1,948,127 290,553 14.9% (7)  Total Deductions 3,399,647 3,800,366 400,719 10.5%

54.1% 51.2% (2.9%)      Contractual Percentage 52.9% 51.2% (1.7%)

2,348,377 2,847,833 (499,456) (17.5%) (8)  Net Revenue 4,938,978 5,607,785 (668,807) (11.9%)

       Expenses

808,030 751,744 (56,286) (7.5%) (9)       Purchased Labor 1,679,193 1,464,866 (214,327) (14.6%)

269,387 289,617 20,230 7.0% (10)     Purchased Benefits 551,461 575,450 23,989 4.2%

305,209 401,857 96,648 24.1% (11)     Supplies 622,000 798,623 176,623 22.1%

221,793 313,734 91,941 29.3% (12)     Professional Fees 467,962 623,528 155,566 24.9%

272,013 333,447 61,434 18.4% (13)     Purchased Services 565,726 609,340 43,614 7.2%

90,934 94,545 3,611 3.8% (14)     Depreciation and Amort 181,876 189,096 7,220 3.8%

29,344 27,220 (2,124) (7.8%) (15)     Utilities 54,244 54,750 506 0.9%

567,555 568,484 929 0.2% (16)     Building Lease 1,134,930 1,136,968 2,038 0.2%

158,477 131,706 (26,771) (20.3%) (17)     Other Expenses 302,743 287,103 (15,640) (5.4%)

2,722,742 2,912,354 189,612 6.5% (18)  Total Expenses 5,560,135 5,739,724 179,589 3.1%

(374,365) (64,521) (309,844) (480.2%) (19)  Net Operating Income/Loss (621,157) (131,939) (489,218) (370.8%)

(94,073) 62,902 156,975 249.6% (20)  Minority Interest (100,009) 97,557 197,566 202.5%

(280,292) (127,423) (152,869) (120.0%) (21)  Net Income/Loss (521,148) (229,496) (291,652) (127.1%)

10/20/20 3:43 PM


	DEVCO August 2020 Summary Income Statement.pdf
	DEVCO August 2020 Schedule A.pdf
	DEVCO August 2020 Schedule C.pdf
	DEVCO August 2020 Narrative.pdf
	DEVCO August 2020 Schedule B.pdf
	DEVCO Confidential Section Cover Sheet.pdf
	DEVCO Cover Page - Condensed Financials.doc.pdf
	DEVCO Cover Page - Combined Income Statement.pdf
	10.23.20 SPPPR #409.pdf
	STRATEGIC PLANNING
	PRIORITIES & PROGRESS REPORT
	October 23, 2020




